
Philip Bostock, Chief Executive 

Bindu Arjoon, Assistant Chief Executive  

 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN 
Tel: 01392 277888        www.exeter.gov.uk 

Direct dial: 01392 265115 

Fax: 01392 265268 

email: sharon.sissons@exeter.gov.uk 

Our ref:  
Your ref: 
 

 

To the Chair and Members  
of the Scrutiny Committee - Economy 
 

 

 

 

 
AGENDA FOR 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - ECONOMY 

 

 

The Scrutiny Committee - Economy will meet on THURSDAY 4 SEPTEMBER 2008, commencing at 
5.30 pm, in the Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter to consider the following business.  
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Sharon Sissons, Member 
Services Officer on Exeter 265115. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street. 

 Pages 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

 

1 MINUTES  

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2008.  
 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare personal and prejudicial 
interests, including the nature and extent of such interests, in relation to business 
on the agenda, before any discussion takes place on the item.  Councillors 
requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer prior to the 
day of the meeting.  
 

 

3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

 To pass the following resolution:-  
 
 

 

 



RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of 
item 12 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the relevant paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part I, Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

4 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 19  

 A period of up to 15 minutes should be set aside to deal with questions to the 
Committee from members of the public. 
 
Details of questions should be notified to the Assistant Chief Executive at least 
three working days prior to the meeting.  Further information and a copy of the 
procedure are available from Member Services (Exeter 265115) and also on the 
Council web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk/scrutinyquestions 
   
 

 

5 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 20 

 

 To receive questions from Members of the Council to appropriate Portfolio 
Holders. 
 
Details of questions should be notified to the Assistant Chief Executive at least 
three working days prior to the meeting.  Further information and a copy of the 
procedure are available from Member Services (Exeter 265115).  
 

 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

6 DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2008 - 2013  

 To consider the report of the Head of Economy and Tourism - report circulated  
 

1 - 42 

7 2008  CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN: PROPOSED 
EXETER UNIVERSITY FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 

 To consider the report of the Directorate Projects Officer - report circulated  
 

43 - 46 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - ECONOMY 

 

8 ARTS AND MEDIA STRATEGY  

 To consider the report of the Head of Economy and Tourism - report circulated  
 

47 - 54 

9 GLOBAL GRANTS - EXETER POSITIVE STEPS  

 To consider a report of the Head of Economy and Tourism – report circulated  
 

55 - 78 



10 BEACON HEATH SURGERY  

 To consider the joint report of the Head of Estates and Director Economy and 
Development – report circulated   
 

79 - 82 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

 

11 ECONOMY SCRUTINY STEWARDSHIP TO JUNE  2008  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated   
 

83 - 86 

PART II: ITEM SUGGESTED FOR DISCUSSION WITH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED 

 

MATTER FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

12 RESTRUCTURING OF THE STAFFING PROVISION OF EXETER'S 
UNDERGROUND PASSAGES 

 

 To consider the report of the Head of Economy and Tourism on a proposed 
restructuring of the staffing provision following the reopening of the Underground 
Passages – report circulated to Members   
 

87 - 94 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The next Scrutiny Committee - Economy will be held on Thursday 13 

November 2008 5.30 pm  
 
 

 

FUTURE BUSINESS  

 
 The schedule of future business proposed for this Scrutiny Committee and 

other Committees of the Council can be viewed on the following link to the 
Council’s website:http://www.exeter.gov.uk/forwardplan 
Councillors can view a hard copy of the schedule in the Members Room. 
 

 
 

 

Membership - 
Councillors M A Baldwin (Chair), Gale (Deputy Chair), Boyle, P Brock, Coates, A Hannaford, Martin, 
Newcombe, Noble, Sheldon, W M Starling, Wardle and Winterbottom 
 

 

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you 
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Member 
Services Officer on (01392) 265115 for further information. 

 

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print 
on request to Member Services on 01392 265111. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Final  

 
EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – ECONOMY 

4 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

EXECUTIVE 
16 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2008– 2013  

 
 

1.0 PURPOSE 
 

1.1
  

To seek Members views on the draft Economic Development Strategy for Exeter and the 
sub-region for 2008 – 2013 following the comments received from the consultation 
process. 
 

2.0 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 In June 2008 Members received a report on the key issues facing the local economy and 
the early draft of the Economic Development Strategy supported by a presentation from 
Cooper Simms, the consultants commissioned to support its preparation.   
 

2.2 The city is a principal economic driver in the Region making it an important part of the 
South West economy and one which is at the core of the Exeter and Heart of Devon 
(EHOD) sub-region, an area which sits across the boundaries of Exeter, East Devon, Mid 
Devon and Teignbridge. 
 

2.3 The EHOD group of district councils, private sector and other organisations including the 
University of Exeter have considered for many years the considerable advantage in 
working together to contribute to economic development of the sub-region. The 
partnership has developed two joint economic development strategies since 1998.  
 

2.4 Common aims agreed between all the partners are to: 
§§§§ ensure wide participation in developing and assisting in the implementation of this 

strategy; 
§§§§ achieve a team approach to issues of common interest. 
 

2.5 The key stages of developing the Draft Strategy for consultation included a review and 
collation of relevant economic data, workshops on key issues, interviewing key partners 
on possible actions in the next five years within the EHOD economy and developing a 
Vision, Strategic Objectives and an Action Plan. 
 

2.6 At the beginning of July a draft extract of the strategy and proposed action plan were 
circulated widely for consultation with key stakeholders in the private, public and third 
sectors. Consultees were asked to comment upon and prioritise the proposed actions, 
whether the strategy adequately covered the key opportunities and pressures facing the 
economy, addressed the main issues affecting the competitiveness of the sub-region and 
whether partners would commit effort and potential resources to its delivery.  
 

2.7 This report summarises the main points within the draft strategy and also key actions 
proposed, considering sub-regional issues first and then focussing on Exeter. Appendix 1 
contains the full range of proposed actions for the EHOD sub-region and also for Exeter 
and the other neighbouring local authority areas. Responses to the consultation will be 
reported to Members at the Committee meeting. 
 

2.8 The main aim of the Economic Development Strategy is to guide the actions of key 
players and that of the Exeter and Heart of Devon (EHOD) Economic Partnership over the 
next 5 years in accordance with an agreed vision and strategic objectives. The strategic 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Final  

objectives must be compatible with government and regional policy and appropriate for the 
Partnership. The actions proposed must be within the capacity of the EHOD partners and 
make a measurable contribution to achieving the Vision. The whole exercise must be 
grounded in the context of the real sub regional economy, acknowledged by various 
studies as broadly covered by the EHOD Partnership.  
 

3.0 STRATEGIC CONTEXT 
 

3.1 Exeter is a city of some 120,000 people but lies at the heart of a travel to work area 
(TTWA) of some 288,000 people; whilst the sub-region as a whole has a population of 
some 450,000 people. 
 

3.2 Many indicators support the centrality of Exeter in the sub-region. Travel to work (shown in 
the figure below) is the most commonly used indicator of interaction in an area. The 
evidence here suggests that commuting falls off fairly sharply to the north (there is little 
commuting from Tiverton), extends out to the east (but falls off at Axminster), is mitigated 
to the south by alternative employment opportunities in Newton Abbot and Torbay and to 
the west overlaps with Plymouth’s Travel to Work area (Plymouth is 45 miles and about 50 
minutes away). The figure below produced from an analysis by the Centre for Urban and 
Regional Development Studies, Newcastle University illustrates workforce flows in and 
around Exeter. 
 

 Proportion of employed population working in Exeter 
 

 
3.3 Although Exeter is a Principal Urban Area (PUA) and is recognised as having a larger 

Area of Economic Activity (AEA) than the administrative boundary, there are virtually no 
statistics on the basis of the PUA or AEA. Regional statistics on the economy give figures 
for Exeter and for Devon but not for the AEA because of the sub-region definitions used by 
the South West Regional Development Agency, as being based on a county, i.e. Devon, 
which thus suggests a definition for administrative convenience as opposed to the real 
economic functionality of an area, such as EHOD.  
 

3.4 However, as part of the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) work, employment predictions 
were constructed for the “Exeter Housing Market Area” which roughly correlates to the 
Exeter TTWA. The results imply a growth of over 30,000 jobs in the Exeter AEA over the 
next 20 years. The table below details the jobs forecast, with growth primarily in 
distribution, hotel and catering, education & health and a range of services including those 
to business. 
 

Page 2



Final  

 

 Employment in Exeter Housing Market Area Forecasts by Sector 
 

 EMPLOYMENT IN HOUSING MARKET AREA:  EXETER (thousands) Change % 
Change 

 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 06-2026 06-2026 
 1 Agriculture etc 5.5 5.4 5.2 5 4.8 -0.7 -12.73% 
 2 Mining & Quarrying 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 -0.1 -20.00% 
 3 Food, Textiles & Wood 3.9 3.5 3.1 2.8 2.6 -1.3 -33.33% 
 4 Printing & Publishing 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 0.2 12.50% 
 5 Chemicals & Minerals 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 -0.4 -18.18% 
 6 Metals & Engineering 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.9 -0.8 -21.62% 
 7 Electronics 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 0.1 7.14% 
 8 Transport Equipment 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 -0.4 -26.67% 
 9 Manufacturing  1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 0 0.00% 
10 Electricity, Gas & Water 1.2 1.1 1 0.9 0.9 -0.3 -25.00% 
11 Construction 19.5 20.4 21.6 21.9 22.1 2.6 13.33% 
12 Distribution 37.7 39.9 42.3 44.9 47.5 9.8 25.99% 
13 Hotels & Catering 16.4 17.3 18 18.6 19.1 2.7 16.46% 
14 Transport & Comms. 9.5 9.6 9.6 9.7 9.8 0.3 3.16% 
15 Banking & Insurance 5 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.3 0.3 6.00% 
16 Other Business Services. 28.2 30.9 32.8 35.1 37.5 9.3 32.98% 
17 Public Admin. & Defence. 21.2 21.6 21.4 21.1 20.8 -0.4 -1.89% 
18 Education & Health 43.1 45.6 47.4 48.8 50.1 7 16.24% 
19 Miscellaneous Services 13.7 14.7 15.8 16.7 17.7 4 29.20% 
Total Employment  217.1 227.1 235.1 241.9 249 31.9 14.69%  

 
3.5 

 
Apart from a strong (and growing) population and employment base, the EHOD economic 
sub-region benefits from its strategic location, based on the M5 motorway, the A30 and 
the A38, the main South West rail line, the proximity of extensive areas of quality 
landscape, including coastline and an expanding regional and international airport.  
 

 Growth Points  
 

3.6 The role of Exeter’s growing economy is recognised by Government through its Growth 
Point Programme providing access to special funds for infrastructure projects and 
essential studies to support sustainable growth, i.e. the development of capital projects 
planned east of Exeter. 
 

3.7 The role of the city and its TTWA is also recognised in the technical evidence base for the 
Regional Spatial Strategy. Roger Tym and Partners prepared a substantial document on 
the role of urban areas in the regional economy in 2006. This showed that the Exeter 
TTWA is the third largest employment hub in the Region (after Bristol and Plymouth) 
supplying 6% of the Region’s employment. Exeter’s contribution to the region’s economy, 
as measured by gross value added (GVA) activity places the city in 4th place in the South 
West, with a GVA contribution of 5.9%. Swindon supplies slightly less employment (5.9%) 
but slightly more GVA (6.5%) – because of higher wage levels in the North East of the 
region. GVA is the often used measure for valuing relative impact in terms of total income 
generated by business and employment. 
 

3.8 In terms of employment and GVA, Exeter TTWA, which is a substantial part of the EHOD 
economic sub-region, is therefore comparable to Swindon and Plymouth in scale. It would 
not be an unreasonable ambition for EHOD to seek to surpass both and become the third 
largest gross domestic product (GDP) contributor after Bristol TTWA and Bournemouth-
Poole. 
 

3.9 In moving towards such an ambition, EHOD is supported by containing two Growth Points 
(east of Exeter, already in receipt of government funds and Newton Abbot, the subject of a 
bid for funding) with the potential for a third at Tiverton.  
 

Page 3



Final  

 

 SWOT  
 

3.10 On the basis of information reviewed in the preparation of the draft strategy, the following 
table has been prepared highlighting the main strengths and weaknesses of the sub-
regional economy and the threats and opportunities facing it. 
 

Exeter and Heart of Devon economic sub-region 
 

Strengths 
 
§§§§ Large home market population 

(450,000) 
§§§§ Balance of urban centres and high 

quality rural environments 
§§§§ Location on road and rail routes 

and new investment in them 
§§§§ Exeter International Airport 
§§§§ Growth Points – east of Exeter & 

Newton Abbot 
§§§§ Largely well-qualified workforce 
§§§§ Strong service sector in Exeter 
§§§§ University of Exeter – rising star 
§§§§ Met Office & Medical School 
§§§§ Excellence in FE/HE vocational 

centres  
§§§§ Good health indicators 
§§§§ Low crime rates 

Weaknesses 
 
§§§§ Low wage economy coupled with 

high house prices everywhere 
§§§§ Rising car use, and congestion at 

peak times in urban areas 
§§§§ Variable school performance and 

low stay-on rates post 16, although 
improving 

§§§§ Shortage of sites within Exeter 
where demand is high 

§§§§ Loss of qualified young people to 
other areas  

§§§§ Concentrations of deprivation 
§§§§ Low business formation 
§§§§ SMEs shun apprenticeships 
§§§§ Lack of recognition of contribution to 

the wider region 
§§§§ Lack of affordable housing 

Opportunities 
 
§§§§ Populating the Innovation Centre, 

Science Park and other 
developments with high growth 
firms 

§§§§ Attracting and creating firms 
through the increasing research 
strengths of the University, Medical 
School and the Met office 

§§§§ New developments in education, 
skills & training to address under 
achievement and skills shortages 

§§§§ Building on public sector strength 
as an economic driver 

§§§§ Developing enterprise and 
incubation support and facilities 

§§§§ New employment space strategy 
§§§§ New Rural Development 

Programme for England 
§§§§ Newton Abbot Growth Point – 

strengthening Exeter-Newton 
Abbot-Torbay axis 

Threats 
 
§§§§ Complacency from past success 
§§§§ Current economic squeeze reducing 

high growth rates 
§§§§ Polarisation of labour market 

creating more difficulties in finding 
jobs for the less able/less qualified 

§§§§ Ageing workforce and population 
§§§§ Mismatch of target high growth 

sectors and actual growth sectors 
§§§§ Failing to engage young people in 

skills agenda 
§§§§ Rural communities becoming more 

dormitory, increasing commuting 
and loss of sustainability 

§§§§ Continuing poor market for inward 
investment 

§§§§ High number of smaller businesses 
not engaging with initiatives such as 
train to Gain and Apprenticeships  

§§§§ Unchecked cycle of deprivation in 
“pockets” 

 

Page 4



Final  

 

 Vision for EHOD 
 

3.11 In response to the issues covered by this summary, the following Draft Vision is proposed 
for adoption by the sub-region and partnership.  
 
Exeter and the Heart of Devon Economic Partnership will promote sustainable economic 
growth allowing the sub-region to take its place as the third largest focus of high value 
employment in the Region.  
 
§§§§ For the next five years it will work together to bring employers, their workforce and 

local young people into a virtuous cycle of improved skills, training, enterprise and 
innovation.  

§§§§ We will strengthen sustainable links between Exeter, Newton Abbot and Torbay, 
as well as making East of Exeter an exemplar growth point and improving the lot 
of rural and coastal communities by building local services for access to work, 
enterprise support and skills training.   

§§§§ The Partnership will work with the South West RDA and the Devon Economic 
Partnership in initiatives that match our vision.  

§§§§ It will work collaboratively with national, regional and local agencies either tasked 
with achieving relevant and compatible policy objectives or capable of assisting 
implementation of the vision through delivery, action or funding.  

 

3.12 The Strategic Objectives will continue to match those of the Regional Economic Strategy, 
which the partnership endorses and which it has helped to shape. Key sub-region wide 
priorities are grouped under the Strategic Objectives listed below.  Additional Exeter 
specific priorities are listed in the next section of this report. 

 

Strategic Objective 1 - Successful and Competitive Businesses -  through higher 
value jobs and improved turnover and investment 

3.12.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

§§§§ Provide the right environment for business 
- Continue to mobilise cross-sector partnership support for targeted inward 

investment opportunities (as was achieved with the Met Office re-location). 
- Continue to provide support and advisory services to small businesses. 
- Continue to provide an appropriate monitoring and ‘aftercare’ relationship with 

indigenous and investing organisations to help secure their long-term future in the 
region. 

- Use the Local Development Frameworks as vehicles to ensure a timely and 
adequate supply of employment space is provided. 

- Make maximum use of the opportunities presented by planning permissions to 
promote sustainable economic development presented by Section 106 and other 
conditions, including links to local labour and skills training. 

 
§§§§ Provide the right workforce for business 

- Establish the Exeter and Heart of Devon Employment and Skills Board as a driver 
to ensure matching between employers’ needs, target sectors’ needs and skills 
training offered. 

- Work towards a smooth path of progression for young people from school to 
college to work, supported by good labour market information and training 
opportunities. 

- Bring public sector employers into a partnership to source and train labour locally 
– rather than importing skilled workers. 

- Promote development of skills in knowledge based businesses e.g. Flybe Training 
Academy. 

 
§§§§ Create a culture of Enterprise and Innovation 

- Promote image of EHOD for investment and support and encourage the 
development of key sectors. 

Page 5



Final  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.12.2 

- Work with the Exeter Science Park Steering Group to establish an appropriate 
management vehicle for the Science Park, secure planning permission and start 
development of the site 

- Work with partners to secure adequate and consistent funding for the creating of 
an integrated business support, advice and training framework across the sub-
region for small and medium enterprises 

- Ensure incubation units and enterprise centres are placed at strategic points in 
the sub-region, supported by business advisors and mentors. 

- Work with schools and business support providers to ensure early training in 
business skills is provided. 

 
Strategic Objective 2 - Strong and Inclusive Communities - by improving access to 
jobs and services through training and other measures 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.12.3 
 

§§§§ Improve participation in the economy 
- Continue to work with the EHOD Workforce Development Group to develop 

targeted programmes raising the skills levels of those in deprived areas, 
especially groups on incapacity benefit and the learning disabled using pilot 
schemes to assist them and other disadvantaged groups into work. 

- Encourage training delivery agencies to target deprived communities, raising 
basic skills and progression to higher skills 

- Strengthen the voluntary and community sector as a catalyst for economic 
inclusion, using public sector commissioning to encourage and support third 
sector providers. Support areas with the greatest concentrations of multiple 
deprivation. 

- Facilitate support for actions aimed at raising household incomes by working 
closely with partners to ensure comprehensive take-up of benefits and securing 
access to training for remote and disadvantaged communities (ICT, transport, 
childcare provision, outreach services etc).  

- Develop targeted actions to tackle deprivation in the most deprived areas 
including Exeter, Exmouth, Newton Abbot and Tiverton.  

 

Strategic Objective 3 - An effective and confident sub-region – through effective 
partnerships, lobbying and coordinated funding 

 §§§§ Improve Transport Infrastructure 
- Improve Transport Networks to ensure connectivity, providing access to markets 

and tackling peripherality by ongoing lobbying for: 
ØØØØ commitment to A303 / A30 improvements (Honiton to Ilminster) and north-

south access improvements 
ØØØØ improvement to the frequency and reliability of Exeter-Paddington and Exeter-

Waterloo services 
ØØØØ commitment for maximising use of existing rail network (and stations) in the 

Exeter Travel to Work area 
ØØØØ improvements to the rural bus network to increase access to employment, 

training, local services and transport hubs  
 

§§§§ Promote and enhance what is best about the sub-region 
- Improve the way the EHOD is perceived by investors, businesses, potential 

workers. 
- Develop and promote sub-regional attractions and events that will deliver 

significant and sustainable economic benefits through high profile landmark 
developments to increase the ‘visibility’ of sub-region (e.g. redevelopment of 
Princesshay, Skypark, Science Park, and the World Heritage Coast). 

- Develop the individual character of settlements through planning, promotion and 
product development. 

 

§§§§ A sustainable sub-region 
- Contribute towards developing the South West as the leading region for 

sustainable development. 
Page 6



Final  

- Support environmental orientated enterprises 
- Support joining between public, private and voluntary sectors to secure the 

development of appropriate and environmentally sustainable housing, both 
market and affordable, in mixed and sustainable communities with adequate 
amenities and infrastructure 

- Implement the region’s sustainable waste strategy through:  
ØØØØ working with the waste sector to improve services offered to businesses and 

improve recycling rate for commercial wastes  
ØØØØ stimulating waste recyclates market  
ØØØØ developing innovative approaches to waste management 

 
§§§§ Improve leadership, influence and partnership 

- Ensure planning policies in Local Development Frameworks reflect vision and 
goals of the economic development strategy.  

- EHOD Economic Partnership to maintain with partners a delivery framework to 
implement the Strategy and deliver identified economic development projects 
throughout the sub-region. 

- Ensure partnerships are “action-orientated” and respect different roles. 
- Review with the Environmental Agency measures to address flooding 

designations that affect many of the sub-regions potential development sites. 
 

4.0 Exeter and its vision for the economy 
 

4.1 The City of Exeter provides workspace for over 88,000 people including self-employed 
and is a centre for the great majority of the EHOD area for study, training, shopping and 
entertainment. 
 

4.2 In recent years, Exeter’s very buoyant economy has put pressure on land availability for 
new development, particularly in the centre. The key driver for expansion of workspace in 
Exeter is market demand, which has left scarcely any land capacity in the City. However, 
the Local Development Framework is seeking to resolve this in addition to the 
development of the Science Park and the Skypark just outside the city boundary. 
 

4.3 It is considered that Exeter will continue to make a significant contribution to regional 
prosperity by continuing to prioritise the knowledge sector, business and financial 
services, public and health and media and tourism – in effect building on the existing and 
compatible strengths and extending them. However, the following table shows the 
relatively low quality of jobs held by Exeter residents. This reinforces the issue that whilst 
there are higher quality and higher paid jobs in the City, they are frequently held by those 
choosing to live elsewhere. 
 
 Distribution of Occupations by place of residence October 2006 – September 2007 

 Exeter % EHOD 
% 

Devon 
% 

S West 
% 

1 Managers and senior officials 9,500 16.0 17.5 14.8 16.2 

2 Professional occupations 7,500 12.6 11.4 11.5 12.6 

3 Associate professional & technical 9,400 15.8 14.4 13.3 14.3 

4 Administrative & secretarial 6,400 10.8 11.2 11.3 11.6 

5 Skilled trades occupations 2,400 4.1 11.6 12.9 11.9 

6 Personal service occupations 5,100 8.6 8.0 7.9 8.2 

7 Sales and customer service occupations 6,500 11.0 7.6 8.3 7.4 

8 Process plant & machine operatives 3,900 6.6 5.6 6.6 6.5 

9 Elementary occupations 8,600 14.5 12.7 13.4 11.3 

  59,300 100 100 100 100 

            Source: Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
 
 
 

Page 7



Final  

4.4 These figures from the ONS for the period October 2006 to September 2007 show an 
increase in 3% in managers and officials to 16% in Exeter and 17.5% in EHOD. Other 
significant changes include a reduction of skilled trades in Exeter to 4.1% (EHOD 11.6%) 
offset by an increase in personal service occupations to 8.6% (EHOD down to 8%). 
Elementary occupations in Exeter also fell to 14.5% although EHOD remained 
unchanged at 12.7%. There was little change in the South West percentages. 
 
Key sectors - Potential economic growth areas 
 

4.5 Exeter has a very high preponderance of public sector employment. Public sector jobs 
tend to be more stable and are, on average, likely to require higher levels of skills and 
qualifications. Manufacturing is a low component of Exeter’s economy, and since this is a 
nationally shrinking sector, this must be an advantage, although existing manufacturing 
businesses are not insignificant and are important to the city. 
 

4.6 Other strong sectors in the city are distribution, hotels & restaurants, Finance, IT and 
other business activities. Distribution is likely to shrink within the city with the advent of 
the Freight Terminal and the natural tendency of the distribution industry to cluster in out 
of town locations on strategic routes. There is further potential for hotel (and especially 
conference) facilities and restaurant growth. However, this sector is likely to experience a 
quite severe setback in the current credit squeeze, given its preponderance of optional 
expenditure but on the other hand, the growth of remote and mobile working and the 
increased use of Exeter International Airport imply the opposite direction.  
 

 Employee jobs by industry in Exeter 

 Exeter % E H O D % Devon % SW % 

Manufacturing 3,700 4.4 7.9 10.2 11.4 

Construction 3,900 4.5 5.3 4.8 4.5 

Distribution, hotels & 
restaurants 

18,200 20.3 25.2 27.0 25.7 

Transport & 
communications 

5,700 6.5 6.1 5.4 4.8 

Finance, IT, other 
business activities 

16,200 18.5 15.2 13.6 18.2 

Public admin, education 
& health 

32,500 39.8 32.6 32.0 28.5 

Other services 3,700 4.1 5.2 5.0 5.0 

Tourism-related† 4,700 5.5 9.2 11.0 8.8 

Total employee jobs 84,900 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

Full-time 54,800 63 62.1 62.3 64.7 

Part-time 30,100 37 37.9 37.7 35.3 

Source: ONS and ABI 2006 

 

4.7 Within Devon, just over 80,000 people are employed in Knowledge Based Industries 
(KBI), making it by far the largest “sector”. The distribution across local authority districts 
is illustrated in the table below, which demonstrates the significance of the city. Only 
Exeter has seen any real growth in terms of numbers over the last 4 years (+2,200), a 
growth of more than 10%. 
 

Knowledge Based Industry Employment in EHOD 2003-06 

 2003 2006 Change 
2003-06 

% Change 
2003-06 

Average 
Annual % 
Change 

Exeter 20,378 22,603 2,225 10% 2.4% 

East Devon 5,401 4,369 -1,032 -24% -6.5% 

Mid Devon 1,866 1,976 110 6% 1.4% 

Teignbridge 5,073 4,283 -790 -18% -5.0% 

Total 32,718 33,231 513 2% 0.4% 

Source: Cooper Simms from ABI 2006 

 

Page 8



Final  

4.8 The question is “can Exeter establish a stronger proportion of KBIs in its economy and 
can it establish centres of excellence in environmental research, medical science and 
health?” The answer would appear to depend on the performance of those demanding or 
providing knowledge. These would include the Met Office, Peninsula Medical School, 
Innovation Centre and the University in creating the seeds of such industries. 
 

4.9 All of these organisations are investing in their long term development and in research 
activities. Most notably at present, the University of Exeter, in line with its ambitions to 
enter the top ten league of UK universities is investing £80 million in science, medicine 
and engineering over the next three years, with £30 million of existing University funds 
and an anticipated £50 million from external sources being spent on new appointments 
and infrastructure to boost research and teaching. 
 

 
 

4.10 

Enterprise and support for small business 
 
Exeter appears to have a lower rate of entrepreneurial activity than other locations; the 
city’s rate of VAT registered businesses per 10,000 of its working age population is 
around 33, compared with much higher rates in other geographic areas. It remains 
therefore important to improve performance on the number of start-ups, not only to 
broaden Exeter’s economic diversity and be more able to withstand the vagaries of the 
market, but also to create employment for residents that might seek ways of improving 
their income.  
 

4.11 As Members will be aware, an agreement was reached between the City Council, 
Peninsula Enterprise (the provider of Business Link Services) and Peninsula Innovations 
Limited and the University of Exeter activities in the Innovation Centre to provide a co-
ordinated approach to support for pre-start and new businesses, resulting in the launch of 
the Exeter Business Support Service in June 2008.This should serve to improve client 
handling and support with the focus of the service being on increasing the number of start 
ups, jobs created and consequent survival rate of businesses in Exeter. This initiative 
should provide the platform for more work in this area for generating business start-ups 
and securing higher survival rates. 
 
Education and Skills 
 

  4.12 There is a consensus that the most effective route to reducing income inequalities is 
supplying those most in need with the best opportunities to improve educational 
achievement and to access relevant, and employer-friendly training in economically-
desired skills. This will be pursued via the EHOD Employment & Skills Board on a sub-
regional basis, working with the Exeter for Learning Partnership, the Learning and Skills 
Council, Exeter College and others. 
 

4.13 
 
 

It is important to note that Exeter suffers from headline low educational attainment at 16 
years that is complex but undoubtedly affects the city’s image and attraction as a 
location. In 2007, 49.3 % students in Exeter’s schools achieved 5+ A* to C GCSE’s, the 
lowest in Devon. Elsewhere performance was higher, for e.g. Plymouth 60.1% and 
Torbay 60.9%. 
 

4.14 On the other hand, Exeter on the face of it performs above the regional and national 
averages for the adult population in relation to literacy. In Exeter, 47% of adults have the 
equivalent of a GSCE in English (level 2), in the South West it is 46% and in England 
44%. However, in Priory for example, only 19% of adults have the equivalent skill. 
Moreover, when looking at the equivalent level in numeracy, Exeter performs below the 
regional and national average at 16%, 23% and 25% respectively. 
 

4.15 The city is often referred to as having two wards within the worst 10% in the country 
where people experience high levels of deprivation.  The reality is that the nature of 
employment and education related disadvantage is experienced more widely across the 
city in smaller concentrations. For instance, Exeter has 7 Super Output Areas (SOAs) 
that are in the worst 10% most deprived nationally for education, skills and training, with 

Page 9



Final  

one falling in the worst 1%.  
 

4.16 The City Council works with groups who seek to help such individuals on the road to work 
through the Exeter Positive Steps Fund. Reducing income inequalities and worklessness 
are the key routes to alleviating deprivation. In this, improved skills for individuals have a 
key role for both reducing income inequalities and improving productivity and the 
consequent prosperity of businesses and the city. 
 

4.17 The city performs better in relation to higher level skills and qualifications, with just over 
26% of its working population having the equivalent of an ‘A’ level (Level 3), above that of 
the South West at just over 17% and around 15% across Great Britain. However, the 
percentage of the working population with the equivalent of a degree or higher (Level 4+) 
in Exeter is lower, around 25.5% for the city but over 27% for both the region and Great 
Britain. 
 

4.18 The lower performance in Exeter at below Level 2 and Level 4 and above is a critical 
issue for the city, moreover as workplace training is reported to be falling short of demand 
to create skilled personnel to support the locally growing economy and crucially 
employers, according to the South West Observatory, are reporting significant skill gaps 
in Level 3 in all sectors. 
 

4.19 There is national concern that people entering or in the workforce without at least Level 2 
skills and qualifications will find it increasingly difficult to secure jobs. Moreover, to sustain 
the city’s competitiveness the challenge for providers, the workforce and employers is to 
achieve more people with skills and qualifications at Level 3 and above.  
 

 
 

4.20 

The Liveable City 
 
As with skills, improving the liveability of Exeter and contributing to its economic 
development has the double effect of improving its competitiveness for investment and 
improving social balance and sustainability.  
 

4.21 Recent investment has been made in the Exeter Northcott Theatre and the extensive 
£15m refurbishment and creation of new galleries in the Royal Albert Memorial Museum 
is well underway. The major development of a cultural quarter around the Exeter Phoenix 
and Royal Albert Memorial Museum is planned. The additional activities of Exeter 
College, the University and of the Cathedral provide cultural ballast.  
 

4.22 A competitive city does need to be a magnet for people, to be the meeting place, the 
centre for cultural exchange, business development, creativity and innovation. The 
ingredients of successful cities include: 
 
§§§§ Legibility, including signage and grouped activities (quarters) 
§§§§ Unimpeded and spacious pedestrian routes 
§§§§ Open spaces with animation 
§§§§ Iconic public art 
§§§§ Appropriate landscaping 
§§§§ Cultural assets 
§§§§ Integrated housing 
§§§§ Range of retail offer 

 

4.23 Exeter has been the subject of a variety of large and small-scale joint initiatives that have 
worked successfully towards this mix.  However, the city should not rest on its laurels and 
continue to take a longer-term view of evolving and improving its attractions and relative 
position in comparison to its competitors.  There may well be a need to set out the longer 
term agenda for developments, both for planning purposes as well as maintaining the 
progressive co-ordinated development of the city. 
 
 
 

Page 10



Final  

Exeter as Science City? 
 

4.24 Investment and competitiveness can also be gained by further aligning Exeter to the 
Government’s increasing prominence on the role of science and technology in building a 
competitive economy within the UK.   
 

4.25 Around the UK six cities have achieved a high profile focus for themselves and are 
strengthening their capability and capacity as economic drivers by securing a Science 
City designation.  These are Nottingham, Bristol, York, Newcastle, Manchester and 
Birmingham – all looking to drive up their productivity and competitiveness both to 
enhance regional economic performance and reduce disparities, whilst maximising the 
potential for local benefit.   
 

4.26 This is not just about making the most of and building upon leading research and 
business activity, it is also about engaging and encouraging the development of a strong 
skills base to support it.   
 

4.27 It is critically important to engage and inspire young people to explore their potential and 
pursue careers in science by developing even more effective links between science and 
education at all levels.   Building up a greater range of higher skilled and better paid jobs 
in the local economy will be key. On the face of it Exeter has a good set of building blocks 
but some big challenges. 
 
The building blocks: 

 §§§§ A leading university growing in reputation with ambitious plans for further 
developing its science base  

§§§§ The Met Office – a world leading meteorological and climate change organisation 
§§§§ A leading medical school with a growing portfolio of research 
§§§§ A limited number of science/technology based companies 
§§§§ A rapidly growing Innovation Centre 
§§§§ An ideal site for a thriving science park dependent on its positioning in the market 

place and early successes 
 
The challenges: 

 §§§§ Can schools be engaged in a very hands-on way to stimulate interest and 
promote higher aspirations? 

§§§§ Have we got the right mix to attract and retain the right graduates and post 
graduates? 

§§§§ Are there well developed networks of support professionals that can provide the 
right level of specialist advice and expertise? 

§§§§ Do we have the desire, appetite and leaders to make this happen? 
 

4.28 It may well be the case that securing Government “Science City” designation for Exeter at 
this point in time is neither achievable nor desirable.  Developing the ambition into a 
marketable prospectus and enhancing the image of the city in a tangible fashion could 
however still be pursued as the basis for significant profile raising and changing the 
perception of the University and the city.   
 

4.29 Learning from the successful bids to become a “Science City” points to having as 
comprehensive an approach as resources and partners can muster, going beyond 
technology and knowledge transfer into also having relevant expert and specialist 
business support, suitable communications and transport infrastructure, sites and 
buildings, including a “property ladder”, a focus on education, training and skills 
development and community engagement. 
 

4.30 The geography of such an initiative should not be restricted to the physical boundary of 
the city but focussed on its sphere of economic influence  - its sub-regional focus on a 
hub and spoke or clustering model to work, with as wide a range of agencies, institutions 
and companies as possible. 
 

Page 11



Final  

Draft Vision for Exeter 
 

4.31 Exeter has a strong sense of direction and of its position at the heart of the sub-region, 
and indeed the Region. With both Bristol and Bournemouth-Poole lying at the edge of the 
region, Exeter, with its concentration of regional bodies and public sector employment 
has a strong claim to be the regional capital. 
 

4.32 East Devon, together with partners in EHOD, has worked towards the creation of new 
developments east of the city designed to further encourage the development of 
knowledge-based industries based on science and technology. It has been argued that 
the city itself should remain focussed on strengthening the presence of knowledge-based 
industries based on public sector and business and financial services adopting the Work 
Foundation’s identified characteristics of the ideal location for such organisations. 
 

4.33 The Work Foundation’s characteristics of a sustainable knowledge intensive city that 
drives growth in its wider city region are: 
 
§§§§ High levels of economic success. 
§§§§ High levels of knowledge industry. 
§§§§ A diverse industry base including distinctive specialist niches. 
§§§§ One or more universities that have a mutually beneficial relationship with the city, 

leading to industries built on research strengths, transfer of knowledge to 
businesses and the retention of graduates. 

§§§§ Strong communications infrastructure and good transport links within the city and 
to other cities, including by air, rail and road. 

§§§§ A distinctive long-term ‘knowledge city’ offer to investors and individuals alike, 
created by public and private sector leaders. 

§§§§ Strategies to ensure that all communities benefit from the economic success 
associated with knowledge. 

 
4.34 It is proposed that Exeter continues to build its future around this concept. The vision 

should also incorporate Exeter’s role as a lively, animated meeting place, the centre for 
business meetings, conferences, dining, arts experiences, retail, entertainment, festivals 
and learning, with students more inclined to try and stay in the area.  
 

4.35 The suggested vision is: 
 
“Exeter will continue to grow its highly significant contribution to the economic prosperity 
of the South West. It will reinforce its position as the focus of economic activity, 
entertainment, shopping and learning for over 300,000 people living or working within 30 
minutes of the city.  In line with its aspiration to be a "Science City", as well as sustaining 
its broader successful economy, it will continue to target knowledge-based high quality 
jobs particularly in science and technology and professional business services, whilst 
supporting the growth of indigenous and new businesses in order to expand and make 
our service based economy more inclusive. Fundamental to this will be close partnership 
working between employers, schools, higher and further education institutions, training 
providers and key public and third sector bodies.” 
 
Strategic Objectives for Exeter 
 

4.36 
 
 
 
 
 

4.36.1 

Actions proposed to address skills issues, which are very relevant to the wider sub-region 
and the city have been listed under section 3.12 and are not repeated here. The 
suggested objectives and priority actions for the city have been included within the Action 
Plan attached at Appendix 1; for ease of reference, the priorities and actions under the 
strategic objectives proposed specifically for Exeter are:  
 
Strategic Objective 1 - Successful and Competitive Business  
 
§§§§ Continue to focus on growing knowledge-based industries, by working with the 

University, Medical School, the Science Park Company and Met Office as 
Page 12



Final  

catalysts for growth and new organisations.  
§§§§ Working with the Science Park Company to develop a clear strategy for 

occupation of the Science Park.  
§§§§ Aim to attract and retain public sector and other knowledge-based employment 
§§§§ Support the University of Exeter in its bid to raise research excellence and 

investment and to be a centre of knowledge transfer 
§§§§ Promote Exeter as a Science City  
§§§§ Promote a hotel/conference centre in the city centre to accommodate larger 

events and promote specialist conferences in desired sectors and identify suitable 
site options through the Local Development Framework process 

§§§§ Maximise effectiveness of the Innovation Centre as a sub-regional hub for 
supporting development of high growth knowledge based enterprises. 

§§§§ Work with Partners to build on the newly established Exeter Business Support 
Service to promote an increase in new businesses growth  

 

4.36.2 Strategic Objective 2 - Strong and Inclusive Communities 
 
§§§§ Develop measures to address deprivation prioritising those pockets in the city 

identified as being in the worst 20 ‘super output areas.’  
§§§§ Enhance business links and involvement with schools to support measures to 

address low attainment and raise aspirations. 
 

4.37 
 
 
 

The Action Plan includes suggested outcomes and targets some of which are awaiting 
more information before they can be finalised.  These will be reported to Members during 
ongoing monitoring of the implementation of the Strategy. 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 Any financial implications for the implementation of the City of Exeter and EHODEP 
Economic Development Strategy will be reported to Committee on a project-by-project 
basis. 
 

6.0 RECOMMENDATION that: - 
 

6.1 Members note the report and provide their views on the proposed strategic priorities and 
action plan for the City of Exeter and also for the Exeter and Heart of Devon Economic 
Partnership’s Economic Development Strategy 2008 – 2013. 
 

 
 
RICHARD BALL 
HEAD OF ECONOMY AND TOURISM 
 

ECONOMY AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTORATE 
 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background Documents:   
 
1. Scrutiny Committee – Economy 5 June 2008 ‘Economic Development Strategy 2008– 2013’  
 
22/08/08 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
 

D
ra
ft
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 

§ §§§
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

) 
 

§ §§§
 

R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
p
la

n
n
in

g
) 

(R
) 

§ §§§
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 

§ §§§
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

§ §§§
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
lo

b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

 

S
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

/o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 l
is

te
d
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 a

s
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 d

ic
ta

te
. 

Page 15



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
 

 D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.1
 P
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

1
.1
.1
 U
s
e
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
s
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 a
n
d
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
p
a
c
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

S
W

R
A

 (
S

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
G

O
S

W
 (

S
) 

P
e
r 

1
.1

.3
 

1
.1
.2
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
 l
a
n
d
-u
s
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 n
e
w
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 –

 R
IF

 (
S

) 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

P
e
r 

1
.1

.3
 

1
.1
.3
 P
u
rs
u
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 D
e
v
o
n
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
S
p
a
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

o
s
e
 s

it
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

e
it
h
e
r 

fr
o
m

: 
a
) 

C
h
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
/o

r 
 b
) 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

A
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
, 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
g
ra

n
t 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

E
n
g

lis
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

E
P

) 
(D

) 
P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
it
e
s
 (

D
) 

D
C

C
 (

F
) 

U
ti
lit

ie
s
 (

F
) 

  5
7
.5

 H
a
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 2
0
0
8
-1

1
 

1
.1
.4
 S
e
e
k
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
 r
e
g
io
n
 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

•
 

H
o
n
it
o
n
 

•
 

E
x
m

o
u
th

 

•
 

N
e
w

to
n
 A

b
b
o
t 

•
 

T
iv

e
rt

o
n
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
k
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

(F
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

F
) 

E
P

 (
D

 &
 S

) 
P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
it
e
s
 (

D
 &

 S
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

A
t 

le
a
s
t 
2
 s

e
rv

ic
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 o

f 
1
,0

0
0
m

2
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 

Page 16



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

3
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.1
.5
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
k
y
p
a
rk
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

D
C

C
 (

F
) 

J
V

 P
a
rt

n
e
r 

(D
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
8
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

3
7
 H

a
 l
a
n
d
 

b
y
 2

0
1
5
 

1
.1
.6
 S
e
e
k
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

In
te
rm
o
d
a
l 
F
re
ig
h
t 
T
e
rm
in
a
l 
(E
x
e
te
r 
G
a
te
w
a
y
) 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
la
c
k
 o
f 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
ra
il
 

h
a
u
la
g
e
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 (
F

) 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
) 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

(F
) 

H
a
u
lie

rs
 (

S
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 –

 A
u
g
 2

0
0
8
 

 6
8
,0

0
0
m

2
 f

lo
o
rs

p
a
c
e
 b

y
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

1
.1
.7
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
e
rm
is
s
io
n
s
 m
a
k
e
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
la
b
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 s
k
il
ls
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
D

) 
J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
+

 (
F

) 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

F
) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 

la
b
o
u
r 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

1
.1
.8
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
o
b
il
is
e
 c
ro
s
s
-s
e
c
to
r 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 i
n
w
a
rd
 

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
a
s
 w
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M
e
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 r
e
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
) 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 (

F
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
) 

 
D

C
C

 (
S

) 
C

h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

S
) 

E
x
e
te

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

S
) 

M
e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

A
t 

le
a
s
t 
1
 m

a
jo

r 
in

w
a
rd

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 

1
.1
.9
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
g
io
n
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
ra
d
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 

S
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 (
S

) 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 (

D
) 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 (

D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

F
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

a
rn

in
g

s
 f
ro

m
 

in
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

a
d
e
 

Page 17



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

4
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.1
.1
0
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 f
o
r 

s
m
a
ll
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
iu
m
 s
iz
e
d
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 

 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
F

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 (

F
) 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 (

F
 &

 S
) 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(D
) 

L
o
c
a
l 
F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
s
 

fr
o
m

 x
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 t

o
 y

 b
y
 2

0
1
3
 

   

1
.1
.1
1
 P
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
m
a
ll
e
r 
a
n
d
 m
e
d
iu
m
 

s
iz
e
d
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 t
o
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 v

ia
 E

x
e
te

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

w
w

.e
x
e
te

r.
g

o
v
.u

k
/s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

S
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 (
S

) 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 (

D
) 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(S
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(S

) 
P

e
n
in

s
u
la

 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

D
) 

C
o
n
v
e
rt

 5
%

 o
f 

e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 p

a
 (

o
v
e
r 

1
5
0
0
 i
n
 

2
0
0
7
) 

in
to

 n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

1
.1
.1
2
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 ‘
a
ft
e
rc
a
re
’ 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

in
d
ig
e
n
o
u
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 s
e
c
u
re
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 f
u
tu
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

D
) 

S
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 (
D

) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 (

F
 &

 D
) 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 (

D
 &

 S
) 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(D
) 

L
o
c
a
l 
F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a
l 

ra
te

s
 

1
.1
.1
3
 E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
d
iv
e
rs
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 r
e
-u
s
e
 o
f 
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
ru
ra
l 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
: 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 
ty

p
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
; 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
is

ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 n

e
w

 R
D

P
E

 
fu

n
d
s
 i
f 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 

(F
) 

D
e
v
o
n
 

R
u
ra

l 
R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 

(D
, 

F
 &

 S
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

F
) 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

X
 m

2
 o

f 
n
e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 

2
0
1
3
 

Page 18



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

5
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.1
.1
4
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 M
a
s
te
rp
la
n
 f
o
r 
B
ra
d
le
y
 L
a
n
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
a
re
a
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm
 i
n
to
 m
ix
e
d
 u
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
(F

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
C

u
lt
u
re

 S
W

 (
S

) 
N

e
w

 m
ix

e
d
 u

s
e
 a

re
a
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 5
0
0
+

 j
o
b
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 

1
.1
.1
5
 S
e
e
k
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
H
e
a
th
fi
e
ld
 a
s
 a
 

m
a
jo
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
) 

L
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

 (
F

) 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 

1
.1
.1
6
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
E
x
e
te
r 

In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
ir
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rk
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 (

F
) 

A
ir
lin

e
s
 (

D
) 

O
p
e
ra

to
r 

(D
 &

 F
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
D

) 
T

o
u
ri
s
m

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 (

S
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

1
8
 H

a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
a
rk

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

6
,5

0
0
m

2
 t
e
rm

in
a
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

1
.2

 P
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

1
.2
.1
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 H
e
a
rt
 o
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
 B
o
a
rd
 a
s
 a
 d
ri
v
e
r 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

L
 &

 S
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
L
) 

 
L
S

C
 (

F
),

 C
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
D

) 
O

th
e
r 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
D

) 

H
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 c

o
u
rs

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

1
.2
.2
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 m
a
tc
h
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
’ 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
ta
rg
e
t 
s
e
c
to
rs
’ 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

s
k
il
ls
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
) 

a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 (
S

) 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

S
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

S
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
L
 &

 S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

L
S

C
(S

 &
 F

) 

T
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
tc

h
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

D
e
m

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 

Page 19



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

6
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.2
.3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 

g
ra
d
u
a
te
 l
a
b
o
u
r 
m
a
rk
e
t 
b
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 H
ig
h
e
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 I
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
la
b
o
u
r 
m
a
rk
e
t 
g
ra
d
u
a
te
 

n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

g
ra
d
u
a
te
s
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 a
t 
g
ra
d
u
a
te
 l
e
v
e
l 
in
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 

L
iv

e
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

u
rb

a
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

(R
 &

 F
) 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 (

S
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

S
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

H
ig

h
e
r 

g
ra

d
u
a
te

 r
e
te

n
ti
o
n
  

1
.2
.4
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r,
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f,
 

h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
s
k
il
ls
 t
ra
in
in
g
 (
N
V
Q
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 a
n
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

D
) 

L
S

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
N

V
Q

3
+

 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

1
.2
.5
 E
n
g
a
g
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
ll
e
g
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

S
) 

F
E

 C
o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

L
o
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

) 
N

e
w

 a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 p
la

c
e
s
 

1
.2
.6
 W
o
rk
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
 s
m
o
o
th
 p
a
th
 o
f 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 

c
o
ll
e
g
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 g
o
o
d
 l
a
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk
e
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
(S

) 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 (
S

) 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

D
) 

L
S

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

C
le

a
r 

p
a
th

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ro

u
te

s
 

Page 20



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

7
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.2
.7
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
, 
c
re
a
ti
n
g
 p
il
o
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

to
 b
e
 r
o
ll
e
d
 o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

L
S

C
 
(S

 
&

 
F

),
 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
(D

),
 

T
h
ir
d
 

S
e
c
to

r 
(D

),
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 

(D
),

 J
o
b
 
C

e
n
tr

e
 
P

lu
s
 
( 

F
 
&

 
D

),
 

D
e
v
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

F
 &

 S
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

  
- 

p
u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 (
 L

, 
S

 &
 F

) 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 s

u
ff

e
ri
n
g
  
lo

w
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 s

c
o
re

s
 

in
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

1
.2
.8
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 H
E
 a
n
d
 F
E
 i
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 t
ra
in
in
g
 m
o
d
u
le
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
tc
h
 j
o
b
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 c
o
n
c
e
rt
 w
it
h
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 –
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 g
ro
w
th
 s
e
c
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

n
o
t 
tr
a
d
it
io
n
a
ll
y
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 h
ig
h
 G
V
A
 s
e
c
to
rs
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
(S

) 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

D
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

) 
L
S

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

P
e
n
in

s
u
la

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 (

S
) 

B
e
s
p
o
k
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
tc

h
e
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
e
c
to

rs
  

1
.2
.9
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
il
it
a
te
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
ra
in
 t
o
 G
a
in
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
P

e
n
in

s
u
la

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 (

D
) 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
D

) 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

1
.2
.1
0
 P
il
o
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le
 m
o
d
e
ls
 f
o
r 
S
M
E
s
 t
o
 a
ll
o
w
 

m
o
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

F
) 

L
S

C
 (

F
),

 P
e
n
in

s
u
la

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 (

S
),

 T
ra

in
 t
o
 G

a
in

 
P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 (
S

) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

1
.2
.1
1
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
k
il
ls
 a
u
d
it
s
 i
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

(S
) 

L
S

C
 (

F
),

 J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

 F
 

&
 S

) 
 

1
2
 a

u
d
it
s
 

Page 21



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

8
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.2
.1
2
 B
ri
n
g
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 i
n
to
 a
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
 l
a
b
o
u
r 
lo
c
a
ll
y
 –
 

ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
in
g
 s
k
il
le
d
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

L
S

C
 (

F
 &

 S
),

 C
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
D

) 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 j
o
b
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
  

1
.2
.1
3
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 t
o
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

S
o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 (

D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
),

 L
S

C
 (

F
 &

 S
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
) 

N
e
w

 c
o
lle

g
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

N
e
w

to
n
 A

b
b
o
t 

b
y
 2

0
1
3
 

Page 22



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

9
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.3

 C
re

a
te

 a
 c

u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 &

 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

1
.3
.1
 P
ro
m
o
te
 i
m
a
g
e
 o
f 
E
H
O
D
 f
o
r 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
k
e
y
 s
e
c
to
rs
  

 

•
 

IC
T
  

•
 

C
re
a
ti
v
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

•
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
&
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

B
io
te
c
h
, 
m
e
d
ic
a
l 
&
 h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

•
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 

•
 

S
m
a
ll
 s
c
a
le
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

•
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m
 

•
 

F
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 d
ri
n
k
 

 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

it
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

(D
 &

 F
) 

 M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 &

 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
F

&
S

) 
  

S
W

R
D

A
 (

F
 &

 D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(S

) 
F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

S
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 (

S
) 

M
a
jo

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 
in

 
k
e
y
 

s
e
c
to

rs
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

X
 J

o
b
s
 i
n
 k

e
y
s
 s

e
c
to

rs
 –

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
x
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
, 
ra

is
e
 t

o
 x

 b
y
 2

0
1
3
 

  

1
.3
.2
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 b
u
il
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
ly
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 E
x
e
te
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
c
u
b
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
it
s
 a
n
d
 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 a
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

p
o
in
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
d
v
is
o
rs
 a
n
d
 m
e
n
to
rs
 

A
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

D
, 
F

 &
 

S
) 

P
e
n
in

s
u
la

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

(F
 

&
 

D
),

 U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(F

 &
 

S
),

 
P

e
n
in

s
u
la

 
In

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 

L
td

 (
D

),
 S

W
R

D
A

 (
F

),
 P

ri
v
a
te

 
S

e
c
to

r 
(S

) 

W
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 
E

H
O

D
 

Page 23



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
0
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.3
.3
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 e
a
rl
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

s
k
il
ls
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
D

),
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
),

 
P

e
n
in

s
u
la

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 (

D
),

 
C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 (

D
),

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

D
) 

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

/e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 e

v
e
ry

 h
ig

h
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
u
p
il 

1
.3
.4
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
E
x
e
te
r 
in
 i
ts
 

b
id
s
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

D
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 a

s
 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 t
o
p
 1

0
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 b
y
 

2
0
1
2
 

1
.3
.5
 P
ro
m
o
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
k
il
ls
 i
n
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 F

ly
b
e
 T

ra
in

in
g

 
A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(S

 &
 D

) 
F

ly
b
e
 (

F
) 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
F

E
 (

D
) 

L
S

C
 (

S
) 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
2
0
0
9
 

1
.3
.6
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
te
r 
S
c
ie
n
c
e
 P
a
rk
 

S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
: 

•
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

v
e
h
ic

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 P

a
rk

 

•
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
a
s
te

r 
p
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 

•
 

s
u
b
m

it
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 (
D

) 
&

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(D

 &
 F

) 
S

W
R

D
A

  
(F

 &
 S

) 
M

e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

F
 &

 S
) 

H
i-
T

e
c
h
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 e

.g
. 

C
e
n
tr

a
x
, 

H
e
a
th

c
o
a
t 
(L

 &
 S

) 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

V
e
h
ic

le
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 e

n
d
 

2
0
0
8
 

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
0
9
  

 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
x
 m

2
 o

f 
fl
o
o
rs

p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 

P
a
rk

 b
y
 2

0
1
3
 

1
.3
.7
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 n
e
w
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 

N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 
li
n
k
e
d
 t
o
 a
e
ro
s
p
a
c
e
/a
u
to
m
o
ti
v
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

C
e
n
tr

a
x
 (

F
) 

X
 m

2
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 

2
0
1
3
 

Page 24



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
1
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.4
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
E
x
e
te
r 
n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

1
.4
.1
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 g
ro
w
in
g
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
-b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
, 
b
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
M
e
d
ic
a
l 
S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S
c
ie
n
c
e
 P
a
rk
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 M
e
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 a
s
 d
ri
v
e
rs
 f
o
r 
s
c
ie
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
  

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(D

 &
 S

),
 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
(S

),
 M

e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

D
 &

 S
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

D
 

&
 S

),
 D

C
C

 (
S

),
 E

D
D

C
 (

S
),

 
K

e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

R
e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 c

lu
s
te

r 
o
f 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
/o

r 
in

w
a
rd

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 i
n
 k

e
y
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 

in
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 E

x
e
te

r 

1
.4
.2
 W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 S
c
ie
n
c
e
 P
a
rk
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
ie
n
c
e
 

P
a
rk
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(D

 &
 S

),
 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

(S
),

 
M

e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

D
 &

 S
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

D
 

&
 
S

),
 
D

C
C

 
(S

),
 
E

D
D

C
 
(S

),
 

K
e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
, 
k
e
y
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 t
a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g

 a
g
re

e
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

1
.4
.3
 A
im
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
-b
a
s
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
),

 L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

L
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(D

, 
L
 &

 
S

),
 M

e
d
ic

a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
(S

),
 M

e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

D
, 

L
 &

 S
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 

(D
, 

L
 &

 S
),

 E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

L
 &

 S
) 

a
n
d
 

K
e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
  

1
.4
.4
 P
ro
m
o
te
 a
 h
o
te
l/
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 l
a
rg
e
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 d
e
s
ir
e
d
 

s
e
c
to
rs
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
),

 L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

L
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

),
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(S

),
 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
(S

),
 M

e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

S
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
),

 
E

x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

L
 &

 S
) 

a
n
d
 K

e
y
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

B
u
ild

in
g

 f
it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 E

x
e
te

r 

Page 25



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
2
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.4
.5
 M
a
x
im
is
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 a
s
 a
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
h
u
b
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 g
ro
w
th
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 

     

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
In

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

B
o
a
rd

 (
D

 &
 F

) 
; 

E
x
e
te

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

r 
s
u
rp

a
s
s
e
d
. 

1
.5
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
T
e
ig
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

1
.5
.1
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 t
o
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
 R

 &
 

S
) 

S
o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 (

D
&

F
),

 
L
S

C
 (

S
 &

 F
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
),

 
L
o
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

/C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

L
&

 S
) 

B
u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 f

it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

1
.5
.2
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 n
e
w
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 

N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 
li
n
k
e
d
 t
o
 a
e
ro
s
p
a
c
e
/a
u
to
m
o
ti
v
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
 R

 &
 S

) 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

),
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(S

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

 &
 F

))
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

L
 &

 S
) 

a
n
d
 

K
e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

B
u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 f

it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

1
.6
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
E
a
s
t 
D
e
v
o
n
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

Page 26



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
3
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

1
. 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

1
.6
.1
 W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 S
c
ie
n
c
e
 P
a
rk
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
le
a
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
c
ie
n
c
e
 P
a
rk
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
(D

 &
 S

),
 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

(S
),

 
M

e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

D
 &

 S
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

D
 

&
 

S
),

 
D

C
C

 
(S

),
 

E
C

C
 

(S
),

 
K

e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
, 
k
e
y
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 t
a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g

 a
g
re

e
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

1
.6
.2
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 (

a
s
 a

t 
H

o
n
it
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
) 

in
 E

x
m

o
u
th

, 
A

x
m

in
s
te

r 
a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 

S
e
a
to

n
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
),

 P
e
n
in

s
u
la

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 (

S
),

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

m
a
ll 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

(S
 

&
 

L
),

 
L
o
c
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 L

) 

B
u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 f

it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

1
.6
.3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 b
u
s
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 E
a
s
t 
D
e
v
o
n
 c
o
ll
e
g
e
 

in
 T
iv
e
rt
o
n

 (
M

id
 D

e
v
o
n
) 

n
o
w

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 N

o
rt

h
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

M
D

D
C

 
(S

),
 

N
o
rt

h
 

D
e
v
o
n

 
C

o
lle

g
e
 (

S
 &

 L
),

 D
C

C
 (

D
, 

S
 

&
 

F
),

 
L
S

C
 

(S
) 

P
u
b
lic

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
D

) 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 

1
.7
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
M
id
 D
e
v
o
n
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

1
.7
.1
 S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
T
iv
e
rt
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 

(D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
),

 P
e
n
in

s
u
la

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 (

S
),

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

m
a
ll 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

(S
 

&
 

L
),

 
L
o
c
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 L

) 

B
u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 f

it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

Page 27



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
4
 

 D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

2
. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

2
.1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 

2
.1
.1
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
H
O
D
 

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 r
a
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
k
il
ls
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 u
rb
a
n
 a
re
a
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
ll
y
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 o
n
 i
n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 u
s
in
g
 p
il
o
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
m
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
D

) 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

L
S

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

T
h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
(D

) 
J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

F
 &

 D
) 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

 F
 &

 S
) 

 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

2
.1
.2
 D
e
li
v
e
r 
ro
u
te
s
 i
n
to
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 u
n
e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
L
S

C
 (

S
) 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

F
 &

 D
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 

2
.1
.3
 S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

s
e
c
to
r 
a
s
 a
 c
a
ta
ly
s
t 
fo
r 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
, 

u
s
in
g
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
m
u
lt
ip
le
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
e
c
to

r 
(D

) 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
; 
m

o
re

 h
e
lp

 
g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 

b
y
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

m
o
v
e
 i
n
to

 o
r 

b
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
lo

n
g
 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

  

Page 28



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
5
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

2
. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

2
.1
.4
 F
a
c
il
it
a
te
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

ra
is
in
g
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 b
y
: 

 •
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 t

a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

•
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

re
m

o
te

 a
n
d
 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 (

IC
T

, 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

tc
) 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 &

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
(S

&
D

),
 L

S
P

s
 (

F
) 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
(D

) 
M

a
jo

r 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
D

) 
 

R
a
is

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
in

c
o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 £

x
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 t

o
 

£
y
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
 

 D
e
c
re

a
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
 t

o
 

in
c
o
m

e
 r

a
ti
o
 –

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 t
o
 b

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

2
.1
.5
 P
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 

ra
is
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
g
re
a
te
s
t 

n
e
e
d
. 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
  
(S

) 
D

C
C

 (
D

) 
J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

D
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
D

) 
C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 (

D
) 

Y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
n
g

 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
n
 j
o
b
  
m

a
rk

e
t 

2
.1
.6
 R
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 b
y
 p
u
rs
u
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
it
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

n
o
ta

b
ly

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d
 

s
k
ill

s
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
 C

h
ild

c
a
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

a
ft

e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l,
 

c
rè

c
h
e
, 
h
o
lid

a
y
 c

lu
b
s
) 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

) 
a
n
d
 L

o
b
b
y
in

g
 

(L
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

S
ta

g
e
c
o
a
c
h
 (

S
 &

 D
) 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 (

S
 &

 D
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
e
r 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

u
s
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g

e
r 

u
s
e
 (

if
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

) 

Page 29



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
6
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

2
. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

2
.1
.7
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 

m
a
rk
e
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
a
s
ta
l 
to
w
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
a
w
li
s
h
 

a
n
d
 T
e
ig
n
m
o
u
th
 

      

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
S

) 
L
o
c
a
l 
C

h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

S
) 

1
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 

2
.2
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
te
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 a
re
a
s
 

2
.2
.1
 E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 

ta
rg
e
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
ra
is
in
g
 b
a
s
ic
 

s
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 t
o
 h
ig
h
e
r 
s
k
il
ls
 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

L
S

C
 (

S
) 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
D

) 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
 (

D
) 

R
a
is

in
g

 o
f 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
b
o
v
e
 

N
V

Q
1
 a

n
d
 n

o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

2
.2
.2
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
in
 

fo
r 
e
.g
. 
E
x
e
te
r,
 E
x
m
o
u
th
, 
N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 
a
n
d
 

T
iv
e
rt
o
n
  

F
o
rm

u
la

te
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

s
e
c
u
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 (

D
 &

 S
) 

  

L
S

C
 (

S
) 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

F
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

P
o
lic

e
 (

S
) 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
(D

) 
D

e
v
o
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 3

 i
n
 w

o
rs

t 
1
0
%

 b
y
 

2
0
1
0
 

H
a
lv

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 w

o
rs

t 
2
5
%

 
fr

o
m

 2
2
 t

o
 1

1
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 

2
.2
.3
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 E
x
m
o
u
th
 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

(S
 &

 D
),

 P
o
lic

e
 (

D
) 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

ri
m

e
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

in
 I

M
D

 

2
.3
 P
la
n
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
 

 

Page 30



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
7
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

2
. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

2
.3
.1
 F
a
c
il
it
a
te
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
y
: 

 •
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
  

•
 

lo
b
b
y
in

g
 f
o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 

   P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

   L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

L
) 

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
D

) 
M

a
jo

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 L

) 

R
S

S
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 
n
e
w

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 x

%
 

b
y
 2

0
1
3
 

2
.3
.2
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
C
ra
n
b
ro
o
k
 

n
e
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
p
a
c
e
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

la
te

s
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
),

 (
D

) 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

E
a
s
t 

D
e
v
o
n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
e
a
m

  
&

 (
F

) 

D
C

C
 (

D
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

(D
) 

H
o
u
s
e
b
u
ild

e
rs

 (
D

) 
S

ta
g

e
c
o
a
c
h
 (

F
, 
S

 &
 D

) 

S
ta

rt
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 D

e
c
 2

0
0
9
 

F
ir
s
t 

7
5
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
1
 

1
5
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 

(m
a
y
 n

e
e
d
 r

e
v
is

in
g

 i
n
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
) 

2
.3
.3
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 c
a
p
it
a
li
s
e
 o
n
 n
e
w
 

g
ro
w
th
 p
o
in
t 
s
ta
tu
s
 i
n
 N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

(D
) 

th
ro

u
g

h
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
e
a
m

 
(t

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
) 

&
 (

F
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

H
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

e
rs

 (
D

) 

5
0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 o

n
e
 u

rb
a
n
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 

2
.3
.4
 S
e
e
k
 N
e
w
 G
ro
w
th
 P
o
in
ts
 s
ta
tu
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

2
,5
0
0
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
te
rn
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 T
iv
e
rt
o
n
 

L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

L
) 

G
O

S
W

 (
S

) 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 N

G
P

 b
y
 m

id
 

2
0
0
9
 

Page 31



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
8
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

2
. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

2
.3
.5
 S
e
e
k
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
re
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 W
IF
I 

in
 E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 a
ll
 m
a
rk
e
t 
to
w
n
s
 

L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

L
) 

B
T

 (
F

) 
M

o
b

ile
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 
(F

) 

E
x
e
te

r 
b
y
 2

0
1
0
 

8
0
%

 o
th

e
r 

M
a
rk

e
t 
to

w
n
s
 b

y
 

2
0
1
3
 

2
.3
.6
 C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
a
c
il
it
y
 i
n
 E
x
e
te
r 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 (
F

) 
 

S
W

 T
o
u
ri
s
m

 (
S

) 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

 (
S

) 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
 

2
.3
.7
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
a
s
ta
l 
to
w
n
s
 o
f 
A
x
m
in
s
te
r,
 E
x
m
o
u
th
, 

H
o
n
it
o
n
, 
S
e
a
to
n
 a
n
d
 S
id
m
o
u
th
 

    

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
S

) 
C

h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

S
) 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 

2
.4
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
E
x
e
te
r 
n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

2
.4
.1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
o
c
k
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rs
t 
2
0
 ‘
s
u
p
e
r 
o
u
tp
u
t 
a
re
a
s
’ 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

S
, 
F

 &
 L

) 
E

x
e
te

r 
S

o
c
ia

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 E

x
e
te

r 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 

S
te

p
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
k
ill

s
 &

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

ri
m

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 
a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
m

 

2
.5
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
T
e
ig
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

2
.5
.1
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 T
a
ll
 B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 F
e
a
s
ib
il
it
y
 

S
tu
d
y
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 f
o
rm
u
la
ti
n
g
 a
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
 s

tu
d
y
 (

F
) 

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

S
) 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 2

0
1
1
 

Page 32



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

1
9
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p

o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

2
. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

2
.5
.2
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 u
rb
a
n
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t 
a
re
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll
 a
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

a
n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

(R
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

) 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 v

ia
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
la

b
o
u
r 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

2
.5
.3
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
N
e
w
 

G
ro
w
th
 P
o
in
ts
 s
ta
tu
s
 

 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

a
n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

(R
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
),

 G
O

S
W

 (
S

) 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

2
.6
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
E
a
s
t 
D
e
v
o
n
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

2
.6
.1
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th
e
 C
ra
n
b
ro
o
k
 n
e
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
s
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

a
n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

(R
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
),

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 (

S
),

 D
C

C
 (

S
),

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

2
.6
.2
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
il
it
y
 a
s
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
is
s
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

s
tr
ic
te
r 
a
p
p
li
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
S
1
0
6
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
it
e
s
, 

b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 a
 m
o
re
 f
le
x
ib
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
it
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 m
ix
e
d
 u
s
e
 c
o
u
ld
 

b
ri
n
g
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

a
n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

(R
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
),

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 (

S
),

 D
C

C
 (

S
),

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
S

 &
 F

) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

2
.7
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
M
id
 D
e
v
o
n
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
  

Page 33



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
0
 

 D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
.1
.1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 N
e
tw
o
rk
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m
a
rk
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

ta
c
k
li
n
g
 p
e
ri
p
h
e
ra
li
ty
 b
y
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 l
o
b
b
y
in
g
 f
o
r:
  

1
. 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 A
3
0
3
 /
 A

3
0
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
(H

o
n
it
o
n
 t
o
 I
lm

in
s
te

r)
 a

n
d
 n

o
rt

h
-s

o
u
th

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

2
. 

L
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 2

8
 o

f 
th

e
 M

5
 

3
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r-
P

a
d
d
in

g
to

n
 a

n
d
 E

x
e
te

r-
W

a
te

rl
o
o
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

4
. 

th
e
 r

e
g

io
n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
ra

il 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

k
e
y
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

H
e
a
th

ro
w

 a
n
d
 C

ro
s
s
ra

il 
5
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

u
ra

l 
b
u
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
lo

c
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 h
u
b
s
 

6
. 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 r
a
il 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 (
a
n
d
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
) 

in
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
te

r 
T

ra
v
e
l 
to

 
W

o
rk

 a
re

a
 

 

 L
o
b
b
y
in

g
 &

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

D
) 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

(D
) 

T
ra

in
 O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 C

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 

(D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

L
 &

 F
) 

E
x
e
te

r 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

ir
p
o
rt

 
(D

) 
D

C
C

 (
D

) 

 1
. 

S
e
c
u
re

 b
y
 2

0
1
3
 

 2
. 

L
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 3
. 

E
n
d
 2

0
0
9
 w

it
h
 

A
x
m

in
s
te

r/
C

ra
n
b
ro

o
k
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
 4
. 

L
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 5
. 

P
a
s
s
e
n
g

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

&
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

 6
. 
  
L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d

 

 

Page 34



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
1
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.1
.2
 C
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

e
m
a
n
a
ti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 R
S
S
/L
D
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

e
.g

. 
S

o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 L

in
k
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

s
e
rv

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 N

e
w

to
n
 A

b
b
o
t,
 a

ls
o
 

fo
r 

T
iv

e
rt

o
n
 a

n
d
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 N

o
rt

h
 D

e
v
o
n
 L

in
k
 

R
o
a
d
 

  P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

 

  D
C

C
 (

D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

D
) 

 

  N
e
w

 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 u

rb
a
n
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
s
 –

 s
e
c
u
re

 i
n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 b

y
 

2
0
1
3
 

3
.1
.3
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 E
a
s
t 
o
f 
E
x
e
te
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 

C
ly

s
t 

H
o
n
it
o
n
 b

y
p
a
s
s
 

 •
 

C
ra

n
b
ro

o
k
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 

 •
 

M
5
 J

2
9
 a

n
d
 J

3
0
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts
 

 E
a
s
t 

D
e
v
o
n
 D

C
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

(R
),

 E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(S
) 

 E
a
s
t 

D
e
v
o
n
 N

e
w

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 (
F

) 
D

C
C

 (
D

 &
 F

) 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
 &

 D
) 

S
W

R
D

A
/R

IF
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

(D
) 

 C
ly

s
t 

H
o
n
it
o
n
 b

y
p
a
s
s
 o

p
e
n
 

fo
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

id
 2

0
1
0
 

H
o
u
rl
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 E

x
e
te

r-
W

a
te

rl
o
o
 b

y
 e

n
d
 2

0
0
9
 

J
2
9
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 O

c
t 

2
0
1
1
 

3
.1
.4
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 P
h
a
s
e
 3
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 c
a
te
r 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
t 
C
ra
n
b
ro
o
k
 

P
h
a
s
e
 2

 a
llo

w
s
 u

p
 t

o
 3

,5
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 o

n
ly

 –
 r

o
a
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 J

2
7
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 P

a
rk

, 
c
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 H

Q
P

T
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

 n
 R

id
e
 

 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
 (

S
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
 &

D
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
) 

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 P

a
rk

 C
o
m

p
a
n
y
 (

S
) 

S
ta

g
e
c
o
a
c
h
 (

D
 &

 F
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 (
D

) 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

o
f 

J
2
9
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

3
.1
.5
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 L
in
k
 R
o
a
d
 

(K
in
g
s
k
e
rs
w
e
ll
 b
y
p
a
s
s
) 

    

T
e
ig

n
b
ri
d
g

e
 D

C
 (

R
 &

 S
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
) 

T
o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(R
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

M
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

id
 2

0
0
8
 

S
ta

rt
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

Page 35



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
2
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.2
 P
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 w
h
a
t 
is
 b
e
s
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 

3
.2
.1
 P
ro
m
o
te
 h
ig
h
 p
ro
fi
le
 l
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 ‘
v
is

ib
ili

ty
’ 
o
f 

s
u
b
-r

e
g

io
n
 

(e
.g

. 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

S
k
y
p
a
rk

, 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
 P

a
rk

, 
E

x
e
te

r 
G

a
te

w
a
y
, 

A
ir
p
o
rt

, 
P

a
ri
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

E
x
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 

B
ra

d
le

y
 L

a
n
e
, 

N
e
w

to
n
 A

b
b
o
t)

. 
  

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 (

D
) 

 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
 

D
C

C
 (

S
 &

 F
) 

L
a
rg

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 -
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
to

rs
 (

S
) 

S
e
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 &
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

3
.2
.2
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 d
is
ti
n
c
t 
b
ra
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 m
a
rk
e
t 

E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 o
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 e
.g
. 

R
e
g

io
n
a
l 

C
a
p
it
a
l,
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 C

it
y
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 &

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
 &

 S
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

S
) 

M
e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 (

S
) 

M
a
jo

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 (
S

) 
C

h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

S
) 

B
ra

n
d
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d
, 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

Page 36



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
3
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.2
.3
 P
ro
m
o
te
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 o
ff
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 A
re
a
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 w
e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
e
x
te
n
d
 

th
e
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 s
e
a
s
o
n

 e
.g

.:
 

•
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

te
 w

it
h
 D

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 D

e
v
o
n
 o

n
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 D

e
v
o
n
 b

ra
n
d
 

•
 

m
a
rk

e
t 
s
it
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

h
o
te

l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

x
e
te

r)
 

•
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 ‘
ic

o
n
’ 
s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 

D
e
v
o
n
 

W
o
rl
d
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 C

o
a
s
ta

l 
S

it
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
W

o
rl
d
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

t 
E

x
m

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 S

e
a
to

n
. 

•
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

‘o
ff

 
s
e
a
s
o
n
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
s
h
o
u
ld

e
r 

s
e
a
s
o
n
’ 
v
is

it
o
rs

 

•
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u
b
-r

e
g

io
n
’s

 f
o
o
d
 &

 d
ri
n
k
, 

a
rt

s
 &

 c
ra

ft
s
 

•
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
u
ri
s
m

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

•
 

a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
re

 &
 f

o
re

s
tr

y
 

•
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 s

ig
n
a
g

e
 t

o
 k

e
y
 t
o
u
ri
s
m

 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
lo

n
g

 m
a
jo

r 
ro

u
te

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

u
b
-r

e
g

io
n
. 

 C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 (

F
) 

 S
o
u
th

 W
e
s
t 
T

o
u
ri
s
m

 (
S

) 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

H
o
te

l 
o
w

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 (
F

 
&

 S
),

 C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

F
 &

 S
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
))

 
S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

) 
N

F
U

 (
S

o
u
th

 W
e
s
t)

 (
S

) 
T

o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 T

IC
’s

 
(S

),
 W

H
S

 T
e
a
m

 (
S

),
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m

 A
tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 (

F
 &

 S
) 

F
o
re

s
tr

y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

S
 &

 
F

) 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

o
v
e
rn

ig
h
t 
s
ta

y
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

   

3
.2
.4
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 

s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
d
u
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

R
) 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 (

D
) 

S
a
m

e
 a

s
 3

.2
.5

 
A

s
 3

.2
.5

 

Page 37



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
4
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.2
.5
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 E
H
O
D
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
2
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 O
ly
m
p
ic
s
 

 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

D
 &

 S
) 

C
le

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 e

n
d
 2

0
0
9
 

3
.3
 A
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 

3
.3
.1
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
o
ri
e
n
te
d
 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
: 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
s
 t

h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 g

ro
w

th
 

o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 
o
r 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 (

e
.g

. 
b
io

m
a
s
s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
c
o
p
p
ic

e
 

w
o
o
d

la
n
d
s
, 

a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

ra
ft

s
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
) 

P
e
n
in

s
u
la

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 p

e
r 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

3
.3
.2
 E
m
p
h
a
s
is
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t:
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
o
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b
-

re
g

io
n
’s

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
b
o
th

 a
s
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
, 
a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
to

r 
to

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

(f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

 
a
lik

e
),

 i
.e

. 
n
o
t 
ju

s
t 
to

u
ri
s
m

 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

u
t 
a
c
tu

a
l 

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 –
 f
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 d

ri
n
k
, 

p
o
tt

e
ry

, 
le

a
th

e
rw

a
re

 e
tc

 

F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

 
F

S
B

 (
S

) 
C

h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

S
) 

D
e
v
o
n
 R

u
ra

l 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
F

) 
S

o
u
th

 W
e
s
t 
T

o
u
ri
s
m

 (
S

) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 G

V
A

 f
ro

m
 

a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t

o
u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

rs
 –

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

Page 38



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
5
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.3
.3
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
g
io
n
’s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 w
a
s
te
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
: 
 

•
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 w

a
s
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
w

a
s
te

s
  

•
 

s
ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g

 w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
la

te
s
 m

a
rk

e
t 
 

•
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
) 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

S
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 

w
a
s
te

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
 f

ill
 p

e
r 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

3
.4
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
, 
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

3
.4
.1
 E
n
s
u
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 i
n
 L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

g
o
a
ls
 o
f 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

u
s
e
s
 (

R
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

G
O

S
W

 (
S

) 
L
D

F
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 m

id
 2

0
0
9
 

3
.4
.2
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 E
H
O
D
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
: 
 

•
 

re
g

u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
  

•
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

a
n
d
  

•
 

le
a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
 a

n
d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 (
D

) 
E

H
O

D
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
S

) 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
  

a
g
re

e
d
 t
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 f

in
is

h
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

3
.4
.3
 E
H
O
D
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 

w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 (
D

) 
E

H
O

D
 (

S
) 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

Page 39



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
6
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.4
.4
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
li
c
is
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
t:
  

S
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 s

u
b
-

re
g

io
n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
a
n
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
ts

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 l
in

k
a
g

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 E

x
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 s

u
b
-r

e
g

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 
th

e
s
e
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 E

H
O

D
 w

e
b
-s

it
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

w
a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
to

rs
 

 F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 -

 r
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 

w
e
b
 s

it
e
 (

D
) 

 

 D
C

C
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
D

A
  
(S

) 
S

W
R

A
 (

S
) 

 W
e
b
-s

it
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
 

3
.4
.5
 E
n
s
u
re
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 “
a
c
ti
o
n
-

o
ri
e
n
ta
te
d
”
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
ro
le
s
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

S
) 

E
H

O
D

 &
 O

th
e
rs

 
C

le
a
r 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
, 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

w
it
h
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 

3
.4
.6
 M
a
x
im
is
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 

E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
, 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la
n
  

B
id

d
in

g
 (

S
 &

 D
) 

E
H

O
D

 (
S

) 
P

e
r 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 &
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

Page 40



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
7
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.4
.7
 R
e
v
ie
w
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 f
lo
o
d
in
g
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 

th
a
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
b
-r
e
g
io
n
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
it
e
s
 

       

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
) 

S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
) 

S
W

R
A

 (
S

) 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

D
C

C
 (

S
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 x
 H

a
 o

f 
la

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 u

s
e
 

3
.5
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
T
e
ig
n
b
ri
d
g
e
  
n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

3
.5
.1
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 l
o
b
b
y
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 L
in
k
 R
o
a
d
 (
K
in
g
s
k
e
rs
w
e
ll
 

B
y
p
a
s
s
) 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 L

o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

S
 &

 
L
) 

D
C

C
 (

D
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
),

 
T

D
D

C
 (

D
),

 C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 (

L
),

 D
C

B
C

 (
L
),

 
T

o
rb

a
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

p
a
n
y
 (

S
 &

 L
) 

R
o
a
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 

3
.6
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
E
a
s
t 
D
e
v
o
n
  
n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

3
.6
.1
 L
o
b
b
y
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
k
e
y
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 e
.g
. 
P
h
a
s
e
 3
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 a
n
d
 L

o
b
b
y
in

g
 (

S
 

&
 L

) 
D

C
C

 (
D

 &
 F

),
 S

W
R

D
A

 (
S

 &
 

F
),

 E
D

D
C

 (
D

),
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 P

a
rk

 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 (

S
),

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

Page 41



E
x
e
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
rt
 O
f 
D
e
v
o
n
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-1
3
  
 D
R
A
F
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
  
  
  
  
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

S
im

m
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(R
e
v
is

e
d
 

1
9
/0

8
/0

8
) 

2
8
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 (
D

),
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 (
P

la
n
n
in

g
) 

(R
),

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
S

),
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

F
) 

&
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
o
b
b
y
in

g
) 

(L
) 

3
. 

A
n
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-R

e
g
io

n
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
o
le

 
K

e
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 &
 R

o
le

 
T

a
rg

e
t/
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

3
.6
.2
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
E
x
e
te
r 

In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
ir
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
a
rk
 

  

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 (

S
 &

 
R

) 
E

D
D

C
 (

R
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
 &

 F
),

 
E

x
e
te

r 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

ir
p
o
rt

 
(D

),
 D

C
C

 (
D

),
 E

C
C

 (
S

) 

M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
k
e
y
 p

la
y
e
rs

 

3
.7
  
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
M
id
 D
e
v
o
n
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
 

3
.7
.1
 L
o
b
b
y
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 J
2
8
 o
f 
th
e
 M
5
 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 u
n
lo
c
k
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
C
u
ll
o
m
p
to
n
 

 

F
a
c
ili

ta
te

 a
n
d
 L

o
b
b
y
 (

S
 &

 L
) 

D
C

C
 (

L
),

 S
W

R
D

A
 (

S
&

F
),

 
M

D
D

C
 (

L
),

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 (

S
) 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

 

Page 42



Final 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY ECONOMY COMMITTEE 
4 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
EXECUTIVE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 
 

2008 CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN: PROPOSED EXETER 
UNIVERSITY FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 
 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 To seek Executive approval for the Centre for Energy and Environment (CEE) at 

Exeter University to undertake an initial feasibility assessment of options for a) 
low carbon energy solutions in those parts of Exwick without a mains gas 
connection and b) shared energy solutions for the City’s industrial estates, 
drawing on a survey of energy use in these areas. 

  
2.0 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 The City Council approved a Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan for Exeter 

in January 2008, following discussion at Executive on 22 January 2008. The 
Action Plan identifies, among other actions, two studies to be led by the City 
Council: 
 

• Undertake a survey of the Exwick area to assess the viability of a 
renewable energy replacement for Economy 7 heating 

• Undertake mapping of main industrial sites to identify patterns of energy 
use and explore opportunities for shared supply through decentralised 
(local) energy production 

  
2.2 Officers from the City Council have asked the Centre for Energy and 

Environment at Exeter University to produce a proposal for taking forward both 
study elements. As members of the South West Energy and Environment Group, 
the City Council is able to call on a preferential academic consultancy rate from 
the Centre for Energy and Environment at the University. The University have 
now produced their proposal and subject to the approval of Members, would 
expect to complete and present results from their study at the start of 2009. The 
main elements of their work are set out in Annex 1. 

  
2.3 Officers have also engaged with ‘renewable energy’ representatives from the 

energy company EDF. They are keen to work in partnership with the City Council 
in relation to this work and are willing to contribute to its cost. 

  
2.4 Officers have also discussed the scope of this study with senior representatives 

from Cyclerval UK and Connective Energy both of whom are working with Devon 
County Council’s waste contractor (Viridor) to identify potential end-users of heat 
from the proposed Waste-to-Energy plant at Marsh Barton. Both representatives 
have indicated a desire to work collaboratively with the University for this project.  

  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



Final 

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
3.1 The total cost for this work is £25,500. EDF are willing to contribute £6,000 

towards the cost of this study. A contribution of £5,000 can be made from an 
Economy and Development Directorate partnership reserve, leaving a deficit for 
funding of £14,500. Members are invited to agree to the additional funding of this 
from the Local Public Service Agreement performance reward grant. 

  
4.0 CONCLUSION 
  
4.1 Action on Climate Change is a key priority for the City Council. The issues have 

been brought into even sharper focus of late with significant increases in the 
costs of centralised energy supply.  Local authority leadership and action in this 
area is important and a strategic approach is required. This exploratory work 
represents an important first step to understanding what might be possible in the 
locations outlined, drawing on technical expertise from Exeter University and 
further developing partnerships with the energy sector. 

  
5.0 RECOMMENDATION 
  
 (i) That Members approve additional expenditure of £14,500 from the LPSA 

performance reward grant and a contribution of £5,000 from the Economy 
and Development Directorate partnership reserve to fund feasibility work 
by Exeter University as outlined above. 

  
 

 
 
 
 
DAVID BETTELEY 
DIRECTORATE PROJECTS OFFICER 
 

ECONOMY & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTORATE 
 

 
 

 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 
Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan for Exeter.  

 
22/08/08

Page 44



Final 

Annex 1 
 

Strand 1: A Feasibility Study for Carbon Reductions in the Exwick Area of Exeter 
 
Work for Exeter’s climate change strategy has identified that the Exwick area of Exeter may 
have the potential for substantial carbon emissions reduction through the potential 
application of energy efficiency measures and low and zero carbon energy solutions. The 
study will identify what types of energy efficiency and low carbon heating schemes may be 
appropriate  
 
The scope of the work is as follows: 
 

Task 

1. Identify clusters of higher carbon emission buildings belonging to the same private 
or public landlords, or significant non-domestic buildings, and any useful interest 
from community groups (e.g. Exwick Community Association). 

2. Estimate of energy consumption by the above buildings and groups. 

3. Develop a shortlist of potential energy efficiency and / or low carbon heating 
schemes. 

4. Outline costing of the schemes. 

5. Assess the schemes’ feasibility on the basis of the above cost estimates and other 
factors including the comparative cost effectiveness of low carbon heating and the 
traditional alternatives.  

 
Strand 2: Establishing the Potential for Collaborative Energy Use in Exeter’s 
Sowton and Marsh Barton Industrial Estates 
 
Work for the Exeter climate change strategy identified that reducing carbon dioxide 
emissions from energy use in the non-domestic sector is the highest priority in tackling city 
wide emissions reduction. One potential opportunity is collaborative measures between 
businesses to reduce energy usage. This study will identify business energy use in Sowton 
and Marsh Barton. The larger energy consumers will be identified and their energy use to 
adjacent businesses analysed. Conceptual shared energy schemes will then be identified. 
 
The scope of the work is as follows: 
 

Task 

1.Direct approaches to organisations in Marsh Barton already known or thought to be 
major energy users, including those identified by RPS in their work for the Exeter 
EfW Report 

2. Compile details of the heat uses & losses + electricity use by the above 
organisations 

3. Presentation or circular (with response details) to Marsh Barton Forum and Sowton 
Forum on potential opportunities for shared energy schemes. Collaborate with other 
organisations involved in business consultation work linked to Waste-to-Energy 
Plant.  

4. Direct approach to any significant organisations from whom no response has been 
obtained. 

5. Development of energy scheme concepts, with analysis of their comparative 
advantages and disadvantages 

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Final 
 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – ECONOMY 
4 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
ARTS AND MEDIA STRATEGY 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consult members on the issues and proposed priorities for the draft City Arts 

Strategy, prior to wider consultation on the proposed strategic priorities and action 
plan and completion of the Strategy. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council supports the arts under the banner of its Arts and Media Strategy, which 

it approved in 2004 and which sits within the Cultural Strategy approved in 2003, 
providing a linking framework between Leisure, Arts, Parks and Open Spaces and 
Tourism. 

 
2.2 The over-arching aim of the Arts and Media Strategy has been to contribute to the 

Exeter Vision objective of establishing Exeter’s position “as a cultural and fun place 
to be”.  In particular, the priorities of the Strategy have been to both enhance the 
vibrancy and range of activities and to improve the quality, diversity and accessibility 
of cultural facilities and activities, whilst securing the city’s reputation as an important 
regional cultural centre. 

 
2.3 The approved objectives of the Arts and Media Strategy following consultation were 

to:- 

• develop the arts and media infrastructure in order to establish Exeter as a county 
and regional cultural centre 

• improve the quality and diversity of arts and media activity in the city 

• increase access to and participation in arts and media activity  

• support the involvement of artists and their work to give added value to places 
and spaces in the built and natural environment, by investing them with 
character, social relevance and visual stimulation 

• support Exeter as a learning city through the development of arts and media 
activity that increases cultural appreciation and access to learning and skills 

• support arts activities that contribute to strong communities and social inclusion 

• maximise existing cultural investment in the city and increase external funding for 
arts and media activity and facilities 

 
2.4 These objectives have provided the focus for the activities of the Arts, Festivals and 

Events team and partnership working with a number of organisations and individuals, 
including Arts Council England, Exeter Arts Council, Exeter Northcott Theatre, Exeter 
Phoenix, Spacex Gallery, Exeter Barnfield Theatre, South West Screen, British Film 
Institute and many others. 

 
2.5 Members have received regular reports on specific initiatives, the Council’s extended 

programme of festivals and events and its grant support for the core strategic 
organisations which provide the main infrastructure for arts activities in the City.  The 
City Council is an active supporter and developer of the arts and media and in 
addition to its financial support for the key arts organisations, grants channelled 
through Exeter Arts Council, and its direct operation of festivals and events, it has 

Agenda Item 8

Page 47



Final 
 

initiated new festivals and events and has worked at a strategic level to encourage 
the private sector to develop public art within development schemes. 

 
2.6 The City Council has supported the arts strongly within its work on promoting and 

supporting the tourism sector and raising the profile and image of Exeter.  It has 
recognised the value of the arts in animating the City Centre and revitalising public 
spaces, and has supported major capital projects to improve arts and media facilities. 

 
2.7 The City Council has worked to widen access to the arts through its Service Level 

Agreements with revenue supported organisations, which emphasise the importance 
of taking work out into the community and partnership working with the education 
sector.  It has also introduced the arts in community and play programmes, promoted 
arts and media through its tourism marketing, and developed the Exeter Corn 
Exchange as a venue for the live arts and entertainment. 

 
2.8 The City Council’s revenue budget for supporting the arts and contribution to the 

delivery of the current strategy is summarised below:- 
 
Arts Grants to strategic arts organisations 

• Exeter Northcott Theatre      £85,231 

• Exeter Phoenix     £131,198 

• Theatre Alibi        £19,196 

• Spacex Gallery       £11,365 

• Wren trust        £16,205 

• Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra     £11,865 

• Barnfield Theatre       £10,000 
 
TOTAL       £285,060 

  
Festivals and Events – net costs to the City Council 

• Animated Exeter       £37,500 

• Vibraphonic        £16,000 

• Exeter Summer Festival    £100,000 

• Exeter Autumn Festival      £25,000 
 
TOTAL       £174,500 

 
 Operating Costs 

Including employees, premises and supporting services £221,130 
 

2.9 As agreed by Committee specialist consultants have been commissioned to work 
with officers to support the development of a new Strategy for 2008-2012, to continue 
to provide a focus for the activities of the Unit, as well as other relevant parts of the 
City Council, and to influence the activities of other key agencies and partners. 

 
2.10 Following consultation with the City Council and with partner agencies, the 

consultants have produced an interim view on the key issues relevant to the 
development of the revised strategy.  These reflect upon the over-aching vision of the 
City Council, the national, regional and local context for arts development, and 
specific opportunities and needs within the City.  The remainder of the report 
summaries these issues and recommends an ambitious and extensive set of 
potential strategic priorities to be used for wider consultation, following comments 
from Members of the Scrutiny Committee. It will be important to be realistic in that it 
will not be possible to realise all those proposals in the light of the likely availability of 
resources, in view of the current economic climate, increasing restrictions on public 
sector funding, and a much more difficult outlook for sponsorship and funding 

Page 48



Final 
 

available on the back of major developments.  Member’s views on prioritising 
acceptable proposals at Committee are important to the process of focusing down 
the strategy to a deliverable programme of activity.  More detailed actions, outcomes 
and appropriate targets will be developed and included in the final draft, which will 
come back to this Committee for approval. 

 
3. STRATEGIC CONTEXT AND ISSUES 
 
3.1 The priority issues for Government through the Department for Culture, Media and 

Sport and Arts Council England can be summarised into a few words:  

• the creative economy – supporting the growth and survival of creative 
organisations 

• cultural diversity – promoting understanding and respect between different 
cultures 

• increased levels of participation by young people in high quality arts and 
culture, and  

• vibrant communities – building community pride and supporting 
neighbourhood renewal 

 
Underlying these and more fundamental is a renewed emphasis on arts 
organisations becoming more financially sustainable and reducing their reliance on 
public funding.  Reductions in Arts Lottery funding, has already created a more 
competitive funding environment. 

 
3.2 Culture South West’s document, “People, Places and Spaces” is the cultural 

infrastructure development strategy for the South West supported by the Regional 
Development Agency, Government Office for the South West and the South West 
Regional Assembly, and is referenced by the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS).  The 
RSS policies on culture are concerned with increasing cultural participation and the 
quality and diversity of our cultural life.  The role of culture is recognised by the RSS 
as helping to grow the region’s economy and contributing to the quality of life. 
Maintaining and enhancing cultural assets to raise the profile and image of the South 
West is seen as very important. 

 
3.3 The City Council has recognised the important role of the arts in providing access to 

cultural provision and in supporting the local economy, by promoting activities which 
enhance the city as a visitor destination, contributing to environmental and public 
realm improvements and assisting the case for promoting and attracting investment.  
The challenge and opportunities over the next few years will be to ensure that the 
role and contribution of arts and media in delivering the Exeter Vision is reflected in a 
wide range of policy aspirations across the Council, and in its working relationships 
with other stakeholders in the city.  Within the context of local authority functions it 
will be essential to build upon existing effective strategic and working relationships 
between arts services and other departments including:- 

 

• Planning (public art, major development and environmental schemes and urban 
planning) 

• Education (arts in schools, informal learning opportunities and the new 
responsibilities for further education) 

• Leisure and Community Development particularly in view of the Museum 
development 

• Libraries (in reaching local communities and supporting in literation development) 

• Economic Development (including opportunities to support creative industries 
development and supporting tourism) 

 
 

Page 49



Final 
 

Arts Infrastructure 
 

3.4 Exeter’s arts infrastructure consists of its main arts venues and galleries, professional 
and amateur creative arts and media organisations, arts agencies including the City 
Council, and its resident arts and media agencies.  The basic arts infrastructure has 
not changed significantly over recent years, although there have been improvements 
to some venues – particularly the Exeter Northcott Theatre, Exeter Corn Exchange 
and Exeter Phoenix.  Further improvements are needed or planned to these and 
other facilities.  The University has plans for improvements to the front of the Great 
Hall. 

 
 Visual Arts 
 
3.5 Exeter has historically had an active visual arts sector, which has lead to initiatives to 

develop spaces and facilitate and contributed to the creation of the nationally 
renowned Spacex Gallery, the Exeter Phoenix and other less formal spaces for the 
visual arts.  The major re-development of the Royal Albert Memorial Museum is 
expected to create new accommodation for exhibitions of the highest standard in the 
future.  Many individual artists (over 60) have co-ordinated their activities and worked 
with the City Council to promote new annual events such as Open Studios and 
Exeter Arts Spaces, is a recently formed artist studio complex accommodating up to 
30 artist makers, which need a more permanent base. 

 
3.6 Exeter has an extensive range of Public Art, including a prestigious collection on the 

University campus.  The City Council has a public art strategy and has worked with 
developers and undertaken its own initiatives to include public art commissions within 
capital schemes.  Particular examples include those included within the city centre 
enhancements and the Princesshay development.  The city is well placed to build on 
its strengths in the visual arts, but the consultant considers that it will need to achieve 
greater co-ordination and impact in visual arts development if it wants to make a 
major impact and attract the additional resources it would then need.  If the city is 
looking for a contribution from the visual arts to its broader aspirations, it will need to 
find ways in partnership with the arts funding system and private sector of investing 
in the visual arts, to raise its public and regional profile. 

 
3.7 Suggestions for achieving this include: 

• establishing a new visual arts event or festival, separate to the current festival 
programme and bringing together all of the visual arts agencies and activities 

• identifying a number of landmark visual arts projects designed to promote the 
city as a vibrant contemporary place 

• building upon the recent strategic approach of integrating public art in public 
spaces, particularly on cycle-ways and walking routes, at key visitor 
destinations and public buildings 

• securing funding to embark on a programme of commissioning of work or 
host a major national exhibition by an artist of national/international standing 
to build on the existing portfolio of public art to place Exeter on the national 
visual art map 

• identifying ways of supporting and encouraging the availability of artistic 
workspace, providing opportunities for artists to exhibit work and promote 
their work to wider audiences 

 
Performing Arts 
 

3.8 The strength of performing arts activity depends a great deal on creative production.  
Exeter has a number of independent theatre companies, which produce work in the 
city and tour to other venues.  The activities of Theatre Alibi, Magic Carpet and the 

Page 50



Final 
 

Exeter Northcott are notable.  The Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra is an 
important contributor in that the Exeter concert series is the most successful in their 
annual programme, selling more tickets than the Bristol concert series.  The amateur 
arts sector is also important and the Exeter Arts Council plays a key role in 
channelling City Council grants to support local creative projects.  Media production 
is supported by the Exeter Phoenix and independent media producers. 

 
3.9 The challenge for many independent companies and individual practitioners is to 

secure the resources necessary to sustain their creative work.  The main arts venues 
and organisations do support the independent sector by providing access to 
resources and opportunities to present work, as does for example the City Council 
through support in the Autumn Festival.  However, the consultant notes that the 
sector is fragile and the reductions in Arts Lottery funding, added to the difficult 
economic climate, is adding to the uncertainties for creative practitioners and 
organisations.  It is suggested that the solution is the integration of arts and media 
activities into social, educational, economic and environmental policies to produce 
new opportunities for creative organisations to generate income from making, 
promoting and selling creative products. 

 
Film and Media 
 

3.10 The consultant’s view is that there is considerable potential for growth in the film and 
media sector, which needs to be considered within a broader strategy to support the 
creative industries in Exeter.  In addition to the commercial screening of film in the 
city, the University is also a valuable resource running its own degree courses and 
centre for media focussing on animation and games.  Exeter College and Isca 
College provide specialist education and Animated Exeter festival raises the profile of 
the industry and careers.  Film and media, including the software and computer 
games industry, are key sectors for the UK economy and link well into Higher 
Education and the technology sector. 

 
 Cultural Quarter 
 
3.11 The creation of the Cultural Quarter has been promoted by the City Council 

incorporating the development of the Royal Albert Memorial Museum complemented 
by activities of the Exeter Phoenix and the ambience of Gandy Street, together with 
events in the neighbouring parks contributing to this ambition.  The proposed 
development of the Central Library by the County Council provides a further 
opportunity to establish the Quarter with additional cultural facilities, including 
improvements to the wider public realm to create more attractive public walkways 
and spaces.  It is still hoped that the private owners of Exeter Castle (Rougemont) 
will achieve their expressed intention of creating a lively cultural venue.   

  
 Festivals and Events 
 
3.12 Exeter has an established portfolio of arts festivals and events, which consist of the 

Exeter Summer Festival, Exeter Autumn Festival, Animated Exeter, Vibraphonic and 
Exeter Open Studios.  All fulfil a function.  Briefly, the Animated Exeter festival has 
been effective in engaging young people and links well into media work at Exeter 
Phoenix and the University.  The Open Studios event promotes the visual arts and 
crafts sector, and Vibraphonic targets a younger and discerning music audience.  
The Exeter Summer Festival contributes to the city’s visitor attractions and quality 
entertainment programming, whilst the Exeter Autumn Festival supports and provides 
a platform for the amateur and community sector. 

 
3.13 The Council has regularly reviewed the festivals, a practice which should continue.  

The number of other events that have joined the annual calendar has increased in 

Page 51



Final 
 

recent years and costs, despite growth in budgets, limit them from being major 
festivals of regional or national significance.  The challenge is achieving the balance 
between promoting the city and attracting visitors, whilst maintaining other festivals, 
to extend the range of arts provision available to the city’s residents and engaging 
local people. 

 
3.14 The recommendation is that the Council should continue to appraise its festivals’ 

programme and consider the development of a festival or regional, and possibly 
national standing, in partnership with the private sector and as a key strand of its 
economic and cultural development. In view of resources, this would almost certainly 
result in a new event replacing or evolving from the existing range of festivals. 

 
 Creative Industries 
 
3.15 The creative industries include those activities based on individual creativity, skill and 

talent, and those that have the potential to create wealth and jobs through developing 
intellectual property.  The importance of the sector to the economy has grown in 
recent years.  It enhances some of the most successful and innovative areas of 
economic activity and Exeter has most of the necessary ingredients for developing a 
successful creative industries sector. 

 
3.16 The consultant considers that the development of a creative industry sector in Exeter 

should be an aspect of the Arts and Media Strategy.  There are four main areas 
where development needs would need to be supported:- 

• the provision and creation of workspace, including dedicated artist studios 
and incubation units for digitally based businesses 

• supporting the production and presentation of work, including via 
commissioning and exhibitions 

• creating new work and distribution opportunities e.g. commercial sound and 
video production, education and community programmes 

• through joint measures to support the development of the sector 
 

Arts in the Community 
 

3.17 Exeter has a strong amateur and voluntary arts sector.  The grant aid channelled 
through Exeter Arts Council is a valuable source of funding support for amateur and 
community groups and individuals.  The Autumn Festival provides a showcase for 
work produced by the community.  Work within communities has been supported via 
the education and outreach programmes of the revenue funded organisations.  There 
is scope to extend this further and have a greater focus on community and 
educational initiatives. 

 
 Arts and Learning/Arts and Young People 
 
3.18 The City Council supports professional arts organisations and other who undertake a 

wide range of education and learning support programmes and work with adults, 
children and young people.  Young people are provided with opportunities to 
participate in the arts, both within the formal education sector and through community 
based initiatives and projects including those linked to Animated Exeter and the 
programme of activities organised by the museum. 

 
3.19 The consultant’s view is that despite a great deal of arts and media activities taking 

place, including the Autumn Festival which provides an opportunity for showcasing 
and exhibiting work, work with young people is fragmented.  There is no arts event or 
group bringing together the arts education sector or young people’s art in the city, in 
order to maximise the best use of the limited resources available and avoid clashes 

Page 52



Final 
 

of programming.  Improved networking between various strands of arts education 
and youth arts activity will be the key. 

 
 Sustainability and Growth 
 
3.20 The arts and media sector continues to have a heavy reliance on public sector and 

grant funding.  Government funding and much charitable sector funding targets work 
with disadvantaged or specific groups and it has been increasingly more difficult to 
secure funding.  If the city’s arts and media sector is to grow, its funding base will 
need to continue to diversify and new forms of income generation will need to be 
developed.  Operating more business oriented models of development is inevitable, 
and measures to support the sector and adopt best practice from around the country 
should be pursued.  It is suggested that if the public and private sector share Exeter’s 
aspirations it is essential that a partnership is created, which encourages private 
sector investment in the development and enhancement of the city’s cultural offer, 
and can attract new and additional funding from regional and charitable agencies.  
However, in the current economic climate securing additional particularly private 
sector investment will be difficult. 

 
4. STRATEGY AIMS AND PRIORITIES 2008-2012 
 
4.1 The main aim of the Arts and Media Strategy should remain that of contributing to the 

City Council’s mission of securing Exeter’s status as the regional capital of the South 
West, working in partnership to improve the quality of life for all people living in, 
working in, and visiting the city. 

 
4.2 Arts and media, are now accepted as key areas for development in achieving the 

strategic aspirations of the City Council as set out in the Exeter Vision and endorsed 
in other local and regional economic and cultural strategies, including the Regional 
Spatial Strategy.  The Regional Economic Strategy identifies Exeter’s pivotal role and 
includes creative industries as a priority sector for development. 

 
 The Exeter and Heart of Devon Economic Development Strategy 2008-2013 

emphasises the importance of the city’s cultural assets and festivals and its ‘role as a 
lively, animated meeting place, the centre for business meetings, conferences, 
dining, arts experiences, retail, entertainment, festivals and learning. 
 

4.3 This Arts and Media Strategy acknowledges the continuing importance of the arts, 
media and the creative industries in creating a successful economy and supporting 
the tourism sector.  It also seeks to address the need to support cultural production 
and the greater emphasis being placed on encouraging wider participation in the arts 
by Government and Arts Council England.  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

4.4 The Strategy sets out 8 key objectives, which build on and develop the strategic 
objectives of the last Arts and Media Strategy. It acknowledges the changes, which 
have occurred in the external landscape since the last strategy was produced, and 
the change of focus in national and regional policy.  It has a set of tasks to be 
undertaken which recognises that resource implications of the Strategy and sets an 
agenda for development.  In particular it identifies the important strategic role of the 
City Council needs to play in taking forward arts and media development and in 
forging new partnerships. 
 

4.5 The consultant has suggested the following strategic objectives to:- 
 

Page 53



Final 
 

1. adopt a corporate policy approach to arts and media development which places 
the arts and media at the heart of the City’s corporate ambitions  

2. develop and strengthen the arts and media infrastructure and support and 
encourage creative production in the City 

3. develop further the City’s portfolio of arts and media festivals to create a festival 
of regional/national significance 

4. support creative industries growth and development 
5. develop access to arts programmes and opportunities within community settings 

to encourage greater participation and involvement with the arts and media by 
residents of Exeter  

6. work in partnership with relevant agencies and partners to provide more 
opportunities for people, and young people in particular, to engage in arts 
education and learning programmes 

7. work strategically in developing new partnerships in and funding for the arts 
8. work with the arts and media sector and other partners to develop new models of 

sustainability and generate new income and funding sources. 
 
In the light of limits on resources and the economic climate, it is important to prioritise 
the issues to be addressed and the resultant objectives to be agreed to form the 
basis of the new strategy. 

 
4.6 Comments are invited from Members on the relevance and importance of issues 

raised, setting out the context for the new Strategy.  A revised version will then be 
produced on the basis for wider consultation and a further draft of the Strategy and 
appropriate Action Plan brought back to Committee. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS. 
 
5.1 There are no proposals for increasing City Council funding beyond what is already in 

the budget for 2008/09.  The Strategy when complete will be used to support bids for 
external funding, where appropriate. 

 
6. RECOMMENDED that: 
 
6.1 Members comment on the issues raised and suggested strategic objectives for the 

new Arts and Media Strategy as the basis for wider consultation. 
 
6.2 A draft strategy and action plan to be brought back to Scrutiny Committee following 

consultation. 
 
RICHARD BALL 
HEAD OF ECONOMY AND TOURISM 
 

ECONOMY AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTORATE 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
 
1. Exeter City Council – Arts and Media Strategy 2004-2006 
2. “Arts Overview” – report to Exeter City Council Scrutiny Committee – Economy, 
 November 2007 
3. “Service Agreements with Strategic Arts Organisations” - report to Exeter City Council 

Scrutiny Committee – Economy, February 2008 
4. “Festivals Review” – report to Exeter City Council Scrutiny Committee – Economy, September 

2007 

 
22/08/08 

Page 54



Final

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – ECONOMY
4 SEPTEMBER 2008

GLOBAL GRANTS – EXETER POSITIVE STEPS

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform Members about the outcomes and outputs arising from activities under
the European funded Global Grants Programme, known as the ‘Exeter Positive
Steps Fund’.

1.2 To recommend a further financial contribution from the City Council to continue the
programme.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 On the 15 March 2005 the Executive approved funding support as part of a bid by
Devon Community Foundation (DCF) to the European Social Fund’s (ESF) Global
Grant programme. In October 2005, the Government Office South West approved
the bid and the Exeter Positive Steps Fund was launched in January 2006.

2.2 Acting as the co-ordinator of the Fund, DCF employed outreach workers to
encourage and support applicants from community and voluntary groups,
particularly those working with people in deprived areas in Exeter, helping them to
improve their skills, build confidence and raise self-esteem, assisting them on the
road to work and training and/or improve their earning potential.

2.3 A Panel made up of organisations from the public, private and voluntary sectors
reviewed applications for grants. Target client groups included people who are:
offenders or ex-offenders, have disabilities, are lone parents and carers, long-term
unemployed or have never worked, or whose first language is not English.

2.4 The successful progress and activity of the Exeter Positive Steps Fund
encouraged DCF to make a further bid for further funding from the Global Grants
Programme with additional finance from Devon County Council. Consequently, the
‘Devon Step Up Fund’ was established at the beginning of 2007, which supported
projects within deprived locations within ‘new’ Devon. The Exeter Positive Steps
Panel invited additional partners onto its membership to consider project
applications from both funds.

3. EXETER POSITIVE STEPS FUND

3.1 The Exeter Positive Steps Panel chaired by the City Council considered
applications for funding support. Other members of the panel are Exeter Chamber
of Commerce, Exeter College, Learning and Skills Council Devon and Cornwall,
Exeter Citizen Advice Bureau, Devon & Cornwall Probation Service, Connexions,
Devon County Council, Job Centre Plus and an independent private charity.

3.2 The Fund was widely promoted throughout the City, using the local press, Exeter
City Council and Devon County Council publications, voluntary sector networks,
local radio, through various websites and also by posters in Libraries and
community centres. A leaflet was produced to promote the programme and was
available in large print, if required.

Agenda Item 9

Page 55



Final

3.3 The Global Grants programme made provision for a maximum of 5% of the
administration budget to be used to provide an outreach and support service both
to promote the programme and to assist applicants through the application
process. Initially a contract to provide the outreach and support service was
arranged with Exeter Community Initiatives but in July 2006 it was agreed that the
service would more appropriately be provided in-house by Devon Community
Foundation.

3.4 In total 63 applications were received requesting grants totalling £436,882.
Altogether 50 grants were approved totalling £358,012, a summary of which can
be found in Appendix 1.

3.5 Grants ranged from £500 (for a project to benefit one individual) to £10,000, with
the average grant being £7,160. In total, 1,417 participants were supported in
Exeter, the unit cost being £252 per participant; 674 (48%) were females and 743
(52%) were males.

3.6 A key element of the Exeter Positive Fund was to ensure equality of opportunity for
support on the road into work. Any one individual may of course fall into one or
more categories, such as for example, one might be a lone parent who is also in
need of training in basic skills. Out of all the participants supported:

���� 156 had a first language that was not English
���� 193 were from black and minority ethnic (BME) groups
���� 59 from gay, bisexual and transsexual (GBT) Communities
���� 253 had some form of disability
���� 226 were lone parents
���� 500 had basic skills needs
���� 303 were offenders or ex-offenders
���� 401 were young people

3.7 Community and voluntary groups collected age data based on 3 broad categories,
the numbers of participants supported are set out below:

���� less than 19 years of age – 403 (28%)
���� 20 years to 50 years – 876 (62%)
���� 50 years plus – 138 (10%)

3.8 Most projects included support to improve confidence and self esteem, and
assistance to move on from the project through job-search and CV writing.
However, for some projects, specific skills were a target. The second most
common target was the improvement of interpersonal skills and communication,
developed through working as a team and learning more about the effects of
personal behaviour on other participants.

3.9 Developing practical skills included ICT, DVD production and printing. One of the
underlying principles was to engage participants and to encourage them to try new
experiences, for example physical activities, music, filming and arts, to improve
motivation and attendance in a project.

3.10 Participants were affected by multiple barriers to employment, and nearly 30 of the
50 projects supported, helped some of them into work. Examples include:

���� helping homeless people into jobs
���� working with young people who were not in employment, education or

training, or who were likely to face barriers to employment following
disengagement from formal education helping to raise their horizons and
awareness of wider career opportunities

Page 56



Final

���� specifically supporting women through activities to build confidence and
self-esteem

���� supporting projects that helped BME people including refugees, with 39
going onto further training, 13 into jobs and 17 going onto volunteering
work

���� helping people with mental health problems, learning difficulties or physical
disabilities, with 9 people going onto further training, 6 finding employment
and 35 going onto volunteering work.

3.11 Several projects were oversubscribed and found that they needed to seek
additional funding to cover staff costs or turn potential participants away. The
administration associated with the project in terms of record keeping and financial
reporting also caused some difficulties for some of the smaller organisations who
had not previously received grant funding associated with ESF, particularly when
monitoring staff hours.

3.12 Working with young people and people with chaotic lifestyles also presented some
communication difficulties but most groups were familiar with their participants and
developed mechanisms to deal with these issues. For example, during the course
of the projects participants sometimes presented additional needs which had not
been envisaged but the groups were able to liaise with other providers to offer
support.

3.13 Monitoring of activities has shown that apart from the positive impact on individuals
in terms of personal development, communication and practical skills nearly half of
the participants have also progressed quickly with identifiable outcomes
summarised as follows:

���� 221 of the participants took up further training or education (16%)
���� 301 became volunteers (21%),
���� 110 found employment (8%)
���� 38 people came off benefits (3%)

It is anticipated that many more may well reap the benefit of the programme in the
coming months including gaining further assistance towards the next stage of
improving their position.

3.14 Because Exeter Positive Steps Fund was designed to help those in particularly
difficult circumstances move towards work, inevitably there is a need for support to
be offered to participants for the next step. To facilitate this, an event was
organised by Devon Community Foundation and attended by many of the groups,
providing them with contacts and networking opportunities to enable them to
access additional information and support.

3.15 Most Groups, being committed to serve the local communities, readily took on
board the need to continue to provide support for participants, although not to the
level provided by the project funded by Exeter Positive Steps.

4 NEXT STAGE

4.1 The funding enabled groups to manage projects which were focussed on specific
targets which could not have been undertaken otherwise, and many expressed the
desire to raise additional funds to continue their work. In some instances the
project exposed the need for more intensive work and groups will use the evidence
provided by the projects to apply for grants. Indeed, some groups have already
been awarded funding from other sources.

Page 57



Final

4.2 However, as Members may be aware, the Global Grants Programme has ceased
and been replaced by Community Grants, which is a smaller initiative within the
new ESF Programme 2007 – 2013. Community Grants will provide small grants to
voluntary and community groups to help their capacity to assist unemployed and
inactive people who are disadvantaged or excluded from employment and help
them into a job.

4.3 The Learning and Skills Council (LSC), which is responsible for the administration
of Community Grants will co-fund the programme and have awarded the contract
for the South West to (to follow). However, the total amount of Community Grants
funding available is limited, with only around £156,000 for Devon including
Plymouth and Torbay.

4.4 Community Grants will only focus on areas that will feature in the 10% most
deprived in the region. On this basis, Exeter has only 2 areas that fit this category
– Newtown and Priory. This approach to funding criteria ignores the fact that
individuals in need of assistance are actually scattered more widely as the report
on the ‘Geography of Deprivation in Exeter’, produced on behalf of the Social
Health and Inclusion Partnership (SHIP) demonstrated.

4.5 Recognising this limitation, the City Council and Devon Community Foundation
have discussed the opportunity to continue Exeter Positive Steps with potential
funders. To date Friends Provident and a local independent charity have shown a
willingness to support the work of the Exeter Positive Steps Fund and have each
contributed £20,000 each for the financial year 2008/2009. Both organisations are
part of the Panel.

4.6 In June, the Exeter Positive Steps Fund Panel agreed to become the lead ‘body’ to
drive projects in the city as part of the Devon Local Area Agreement (LAA) on
worklessness. The aim is to reduce the gap in benefit claim rates and employment
rates between the worst performing neighbourhoods in the city and the average for
Devon by supporting people into work. It is hoped that through this role and
recognition that additional resources might be secured to help deliver projects in
Exeter.

4.7 In addition, Officers have:

���� met with staff from the Devon Primary Care Trust and plan to work with
them on the preparation of a business case, which if successful, may
secure funding from this organisation to help people into work and at the
same time address public health targets

���� organised with Job Centre Plus and the Department of Work and Pensions
in mid September a working group of key providers and recipients of
Government Funded schemes to support people into work. The aim is to
establish partnership based activity that focuses on some of the most
deprived areas in Exeter and join up the various activities being delivered.

4.8 In recognition of the success and the role played by the Exeter Positive Steps
Fund and as a means of adding to the contributions already secured from the
private and third sector, this report proposes that the City Council continues
financial and officer support.

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Exeter Positive Steps Fund amounted to £429,000 including allowances for
administration costs, with just over £358,000 available for the grant programme.
The City Council contributed £125,000 over three years. Over £150,000 came
from the ESF Global Grant Programme, £70,000 from the Local Network Fund

Page 58



Final

provided by Government for young people and the remainder coming from a
private charity, a private company and £15,000 from Devon County Council.

5.2 The Economy and Tourism Unit has funding within the 2008/09 Economic
Initiatives Budget for skills development of some £31,520. It is proposed that this
funding is used as co-funding to the finance already committed by Friends
Provident and others making a working fund of at least £70,520. It is also intended
to try and lever in additional resources from other potential funding partners.

5.3 Officers will continue together with the Devon Community Foundation in their
efforts to secure additional and matched funding from partners. Progress will be
reported at future meetings of Scrutiny Economy.

6 RECOMMENDED that:

6.1 Members note the report.

6.2 Members support and agree to the release of £31,520 from the Economy and
Tourism Budget 2008/09 to support the continued delivery of the Exeter Positive
Steps Fund.

RICHARD BALL
HEAD OF ECONOMY AND TOURISM

ECONOMY AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers:

1. Grants Committee, 24 February 2005, Scrutiny Committee – Economy, 3 March 2005
Executive, 15 March 2005: ‘EU Global Grants Programme’

2. Scrutiny Committee – Economy, 1 March 2007, ‘Update – Global Grants’

22/08/08

Page 59



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

1
.

A
g

e
C

o
n
c
e
rn

(E
x
e
te

r)
In

it
ia

te
v
o
lu

n
te

e
r

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

s
o
c
ia

l
c
a
re

is
s
u
e
s

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

n
u
m

b
e
rs

o
f

v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

ta
k
in

g
u
p

tr
a
in

in
g

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
w

it
h
in

o
u
r

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

fe
e
lin

g
o
f

b
e
in

g
'in

c
lu

d
e
d
'.

£
2
,5

0
0

8
3
2

1
4

3
8

1
6

5
4

2
.

A
g

e
C

o
n
c
e
rn

(E
x
e
te

r)
E

m
p
lo

y
a

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r

c
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

o
ld

e
r

p
e
o
p
le

,
w

o
m

e
n

re
tu

rn
in

g
to

w
o
rk

a
n
d

p
e
o
p
le

w
it
h

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s

w
is

h
in

g
to

re
tu

rn
to

w
o
rk

v
ia

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

in
th

e
ir

o
w

n
a
b
ili

ty
to

ta
k
e

p
a
rt

in
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

R
e
g

a
in

in
g

th
e

s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

s
o
c
ia

l
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

to
d
e
a
l
fa

c
e

to
fa

c
e

w
it
h

p
e
o
p
le

.

£
3
,5

8
7

3
4
4

1
0

3
3

2
4

5
7

3
.

B
ri
d
g

e
C

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

In
te

re
s
t

C
o
m

p
a
n
y

S
e
ri
e
s

o
f

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
c
o
m

p
u
te

r
s
k
ill

s
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

a
b
ili

ty
to

u
s
e

c
o
m

p
u
te

rs
:

e
a
c
h

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t
w

ill
b
e

a
b
le

to
re

p
o
rt

o
n

c
o
m

p
u
te

r
s
k
ill

s
th

e
y

h
a
v
e

g
a
in

e
d
.

Im
p
a
c
t

o
n

p
e
o
p
le

's
liv

e
s
:

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

a
b
le

to
id

e
n
ti
fy

a
c
h
a
n
g

e
in

th
e
ir

lif
e

a
ft

e
r

d
o
in

g
th

e
c
o
u
rs

e
.

£
4
,5

6
7

1
3

4
9

1
3

Page 60



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

4
.

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
,

E
q

u
a
lit

y
,

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
A

c
ti
o
n

(C
E

D
A

)

R
u
n

a
th

re
e

m
o
n
th

fi
lm

m
a
k
in

g
p
ro

je
c
t
fo

r
a
d
u
lt
s

w
it
h

le
a
rn

in
g

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

to
h
a
v
e

th
e

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
s
k
ill

s
re

q
u
ir
e
d

to
b
e

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t
te

a
m

p
la

y
e
rs

w
h
o

a
re

a
b
le

to
c
le

a
rl
y

e
x
p
re

s
s

th
e
ir

o
w

n
o
p
in

io
n
s

a
n
d

lis
te

n
to

o
th

e
rs

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

to
w

a
n
t

to
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

s
e
e
k

n
e
w

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s

a
n
d

v
is

it
n
e
w

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

s
u
c
h

a
s

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t
o
r

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
p
o
s
it
io

n
s

in
th

e
lo

c
a
l
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

£
5
,4

2
6

7
4

3
8

1
1

5
.

C
ri
c
k
le

p
it

F
ilm

G
ro

u
p

E
n
g

a
g

e
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

re
s
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

n
o
n

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f

th
e

E
x
e
te

r
F

o
y
e
r

in
a

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ry
fi
lm

p
ro

je
c
t

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

4
x

1
0

m
in

u
te

D
V

D
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ti
n
g

a
m

in
im

u
m

o
f
fo

u
r

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

p
ro

je
c
ts

A
m

in
im

u
m

o
f
fi
v
e

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

ri
e
s

w
h
o

w
ill

h
a
v
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
th

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

th
e
ir

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l
s
k
ill

s
th

ro
u
g

h
a

v
id

e
o

d
ia

ry
.

£
9
,9

7
5

3
1
0

4
9

1
3

6
.

D
a
n
c
e

in
D

e
v
o
n

R
u
n

a
d
a
n
c
e

p
ro

je
c
t

fo
r

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

in
E

x
e
te

r

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
k
ill

s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

£
9
,4

9
3

4
1

6
1
7

3
0

4
7

Page 61



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiarie
s

7
.

D
e
v
o
n

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

F
u
n
d

a
“C

u
lt
u
ra

l
C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
”

P
ro

je
c
t,

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
d
iv

e
rs

it
y

le
a
rn

in
g

in
s
c
h
o
o
ls

a
n
d

a
m

o
n
g

s
t

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

g
e
n
e
ra

lly

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

8
-1

2
B

M
E

p
e
o
p
le

tr
a
in

e
d

to
d
e
liv

e
r

a
n

in
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

to
s
c
h
o
o
ls

o
r

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

g
ro

u
p
s

fo
r

w
h
ic

h
th

e
y

w
ill

b
e

p
a
id

.

8
-1

2
B

M
E

p
e
o
p
le

w
h
o

w
ill

h
a

v
e

re
c
e
iv

e
d

a
d
v
ic

e
a
b
o
u
t
th

e
w

o
rl
d

o
f

w
o
rk

a
n
d

th
e
ir

c
a
re

e
r,

a
n
d

w
ill

k
n
o
w

h
o
w

to
a
c
c
e
s
s

fu
rt

h
e
r

c
a
re

e
rs

a
d
v
ic

e
a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

.

£
6
,0

0
0

7
6

1
7

8
.

D
e
v
o
n

W
h
e
e
ls

2
W

o
rk

C
re

a
te

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

in
E

x
e
te

r
th

ro
u
g

h
h
a
v
in

g
a

lo
a
n
e
d

s
c
o
o
te

r
to

g
e
t

a
ro

u
n
d
,
m

e
n
to

ri
n
g

a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt

,
a
c
c
e
s
s

to
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

,
a
n
d

jo
b

s
e
a
rc

h
e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
a

b
ili

ty
7

jo
b
s

s
e
c
u
re

d
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

ri
e
s

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

£
7
,6

6
0

5
2

1
6

7

Page 62



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiarie
s

9
.

D
o
u
b
le

E
le

p
h
a
n
t

P
ri
n
t
W

o
rk

s
h
o
p

R
u
n

p
ri
n
t
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

fo
r

a
d
u
lt
s

re
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g

fr
o
m

h
e
a
d

in
ju

ri
e
s

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

E
n
a
b
le

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

to
le

a
rn

n
e
w

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

p
ri
n
tm

a
k
in

g
s
k
ill

s
u
s
in

g
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t
s
u
c
h

a
s

re
lie

f
a
n
d

e
tc

h
in

g
p
re

s
s
e
s
,

s
ilk

s
c
re

e
n

a
n
d

in
k
s

a
n
d

ro
lle

rs
.

im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

/
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

,
p
ro

v
id

in
g

a
n

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y

to
m

a
k
e

w
o
rk

a
n
d

e
x
h
ib

it
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
o
th

e
r

D
E

P
W

p
ri
n
tm

a
k
e
rs

.

£
7
,0

9
0

2
1

9
1
5

1
5

3
0

1
0
.D

o
u
b
le

E
le

p
h
a
n
t

P
ri
n
t
W

o
rk

s
h
o
p

R
4

p
ri
n
t

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

ta
s
te

r
d
a
y
s

fo
llo

w
e
d

b
y

a
th

re
e

m
o
n
th

p
ri
n
t

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

p
ro

je
c
ts

fo
r

p
e
o
p
le

w
it
h

a
c
q

u
ir
e
d

b
ra

in
in

ju
ri
e
s
.

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

to
g

a
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

fr
o
m

le
a
rn

in
g

n
e
w

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

p
ri
n
tm

a
k
in

g
s
k
ill

s
w

h
ic

h
w

ill
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

to
th

e
m

th
a
t
th

e
y

a
re

a
b
le

to
le

a
rn

a
n
d

a
p
p
ly

s
o
m

e
th

in
g

n
e
w

.

Im
p
ro

v
e

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

a
n
d

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

to
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

a
n
d

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
rp

e
rs

o
n
a
l

s
k
ill

s
th

ro
u
g
h

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
a
n
d

e
x
h
ib

it
in

g
th

e
ir

w
o
rk

£
4
,2

2
0

1
8

7
1
3

1
2

2
5

Page 63



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

1
1
.E

D
P

D
ru

g
&

A
lc

o
h
o
l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
ro

v
id

e
6

w
e
e
k
s

o
f

o
u
td

o
o
r

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
fo

r
p
e
o
p
le

d
e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e

m
is

u
s
e

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

In
c
re

a
s
e

in
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
b
y

p
o
s
it
iv

e
s
e
lf

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
b
ili

ty
to

e
n
g

a
g

e
in

n
e
w

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,

in
c
re

a
s
e

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n

to
d
o

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
n
d

a
b
ili

ty
to

s
e
lf

a
s
s
e
s
s

s
tr

e
n
g
th

s
a
n
d

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

in
in

te
rp

e
rs

o
n
a
l

s
k
ill

s
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

a
b
ili

ty
in

c
o
m

p
u
te

r
s
k
ill

s
;
IT

s
k
ill

s
in

c
l.
,

e
m

a
il,

w
o
rd

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
,

d
ig

it
a
l
s
to

ra
g

e
a
n
d

u
s
in

g
a

d
ig

it
a
l
c
a
m

e
ra

;
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
u
s
e
rs

to
g

a
in

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

th
is

c
o
u
rs

e

£
1
,7

9
4

1
3

3
1
0

1
3

1
2
.E

x
e
te

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
lo

n
g

e
r-

te
rm

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s

&
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
o
f

a
m

e
n
to

ri
n
g

s
c
h
e
m

e
fo

r
o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

3
0

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

w
it
h

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

.

3
0

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

w
it
h

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

a
b
ili

ty
to

m
a
n
a
g
e

th
e
ir

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
.

£
7
,0

6
0

3
9

2
4
1

4
1

Page 64



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

1
3
.E

x
e
te

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

R
u
n

a
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

te
n
a
n
c
y

tr
a
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
s

fo
r

c
a
re

le
a
v
e
rs

to
e
a
s
e

th
e

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
to

b
e
c
o
m

e
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t.

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t

lif
e

s
k
ill

s

In
c
re

a
s
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

’
lik

e
lih

o
o
d

o
f

g
o
in

g
in

to
fu

rt
h
e
r

le
a
rn

in
g
,

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

/
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

1
4

1
1
1

4
1
5

1
4
.E

x
e
te

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

F
u
n
d

a
p
ro

je
c
t
fo

r
p
ro

lif
ic

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

to
re

s
e
tt
le

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l
s
k
ill

s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

2
0

P
ro

lif
ic

O
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

w
it
h

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf
-

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

.

2
0

P
ro

lif
ic

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

w
it
h

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

a
b
ili

ty
to

m
a
n
a
g
e

th
e
ir

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
.

£
9
,5

5
0

2
8

1
2
7

2
8

1
5
.E

x
e
te

r
C

V
S

R
u
n

“L
e
n
d

a
H

a
n
d
”

g
a
rd

e
n
in

g
p
ro

je
c
t,

tr
a
in

in
g

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

th
ro

u
g

h
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

in
th

e
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

w
ill

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e
ir

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

,
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
ir

s
o
c
ia

l
a
n
d

in
te

rp
e
rs

o
n
a
l

s
k
ill

s
.

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t

p
ro

g
re

s
s

th
e
ir

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
th

ro
u
g

h
re

g
u
la

r
a
n
d

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
a
c
ti
v
e

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

£
9
,8

2
0

1
1
3

2
3

1
3

1
6

Page 65



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

1
6
.E

x
e
te

r
C

V
S

R
u
n

a
w

e
e
k
ly

d
ro

p
-i
n

s
e
s
s
io

n
fo

r
o
u
t

o
f

w
o
rk

c
a
re

rs
to

e
x
p
lo

re
th

e
ir

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

re
g

a
rd

s
to

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

s
e
lf
-

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s

a
b
o
u
t

o
w

n
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
,

a
n
d

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

fu
tu

re
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

IT
s
k
ill

s
,

in
c
l.
,

a
n
d

in
te

rn
e
t
fo

r
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

g
a
th

e
ri
n
g

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g
.

£
9
,9

6
0

7
1
3

1
9

1
2
0

1
7
.E

x
e
te

r
C

V
S

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
fo

r
d
is

a
b
le

d
p
e
o
p
le

w
h
ic

h
in

te
g

ra
te

th
e
m

in
to

s
o
c
ie

ty
b
y

s
h
o
w

in
g

th
e
m

h
o
w

th
e
y

c
a
n

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

w
ill

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e
ir

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

,
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
ir

s
o
c
ia

l
a
n
d

in
te

rp
e
rs

o
n
a
l

s
k
ill

s
.

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

p
ro

g
re

s
s

th
e
ir

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
b
y

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
s

re
g

u
la

r
a
n
d

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

£
7
,8

0
5

2
1
2

6
6

1
4

2
0

Page 66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

1
8
.E

x
e
te

r
F

o
y
e
r

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

E
m

p
lo

y
a

p
a
rt

ti
m

e
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

w
o
rk

e
r

fo
r

1
2

m
o
n
th

s
to

h
e
lp

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

in
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
to

d
e
v
e
lo

p
p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l
s
k
ill

s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

im
p
ro

v
e

s
k
ill

s
th

ro
u
g

h
th

e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f
a
n

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
,

J
o
b

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
M

e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d

E
le

c
te

d
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
,

M
in

u
te

s
o
f

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s
a
n
d

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

a
n

A
G

M
m

e
e
ti
n
g

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

p
ro

v
id

e
w

ri
tt

e
n

c
a
s
e

s
tu

d
y

o
n

h
o
w

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

h
a
s

h
e
lp

e
d

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e
ir

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
g

o
a
ls

.
A

m
in

im
u
m

o
f

1
2

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

w
ill

a
c
h
ie

v
e

a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d

le
a
rn

in
g

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt
.

£
7
,0

0
3

3
2

3
3

3
2

3
3

6
5

1
9
.E

x
e
te

r
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

A
c
ti
o
n

G
ro

u
p

P
ro

v
id

e
s
u
p
p
o
rt

/a
d
v
ic

e
to

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ly

h
o
u
s
e
d

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

a
n
d

te
a
c
h

th
e
m

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t

liv
in

g
s
k
ill

s
to

m
a
in

ta
in

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
/o

r
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

7
0
%

o
f

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

ri
e
s

w
ill

b
e

in
fu

rt
h
e
r

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

o
r

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

P
ro

v
id

e
im

m
e
d
ia

te
s
u
p
p
o
rt

,
a
d
v
ic

e
a
n
d

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y

to
6
0

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

o
v
e
r

3
m

o
n
th

s
.

£
5
,2

3
4

6
3

4
1

2
2

6
3

Page 67



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

2
0
.E

x
e
te

r
S

h
ilh

a
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

L
im

it
e
d

M
u
s
ic

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
n
d

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

h
o
u
s
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
k
ill

s
fo

r
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
P

ro
v
id

e
1
2

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

w
it
h

n
u
m

e
ra

c
y

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

a
t

le
v
e

ls
1
&

2

P
ro

v
id

e
p
a
rt

ti
m

e
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t
fo

r
2

w
o
rk

e
rs

o
f

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

B
e
a
t

w
h
o

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

lo
n
g

te
rm

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

£
6
,9

0
0

1
1
2

0
3

1
0

1
3

2
1
.E

x
e
te

r
S

h
ilh

a
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

L
im

it
e
d

R
u
n

ra
d
io

re
c
o
rd

in
g

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

fo
r

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ly

h
o
u
s
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
T

h
e

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

o
f

7
n
e
w

m
e
m

b
e
rs

to
M

O
P

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

a
ra

d
io

b
ro

a
d
c
a
s
t
in

E
x
e
te

r,
im

p
ro

v
e
d

lit
e
ra

c
y
,
g

re
a
te

r
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

.

£
6
,3

5
0

3
1
8

1
7

1
5

2
2

2
2
.E

x
e
te

r
S

h
ilh

a
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

L
im

it
e
d

P
ro

v
id

e
s
e
ri
e
s

o
f
fo

u
r

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
ic

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

to
c
lie

n
ts

o
f

th
e

M
e
a
n
in

g
fu

l
O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t,

T
h
e

B
ig

Is
s
u
e
,
S

t.
P

e
tr

o
c
k
’s

a
n
d

E
x
e
te

r
D

ru
g

s
P

ro
je

c
t

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
E

n
g

a
g

e
d
is

e
n
g

a
g

e
d

a
d
u
lt
s

in
e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g

th
e

c
re

a
ti
v
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s

w
it
h

in
a

te
a
m

a
n
d

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g

to
w

a
rd

s
a
n

e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

a
s
m

a
lle

r
g
ro

u
p

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
fu

n
d

ra
is

in
g

p
ro

c
e
s
s

w
it
h

a
v
ie

w
to

th
e
m

w
in

n
in

g
fu

n
d
s

to
e
x
p
lo

re
a

c
a
re

e
r

in
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y
.

£
9
,9

9
0

1
7

7
1
0

1
7

2
3
.E

x
e
te

r
Y

M
C

A
R

u
n

a
'S

k
ill

s
fo

r
L
if
e
'

p
ro

je
c
t

w
it
h

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

in
H

M
P

E
x
e
te

r
a
n
d

fo
r

th
e

s
u
p
p
o
rt

o
f

th
o
s
e

b
e
in

g
re

le
a
s
e
d
.

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

fo
r

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

ri
e
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
b
ili

ty
to

g
e
t

o
n

a
n
d

w
o
rk

a
n
d

m
a
in

ta
in

p
o
s
it
iv

e
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
.

£
9
,2

1
5

5
3
5

6
4
6

4
6

Page 68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

2
4
.H

e
a
d
w

a
y

D
e

v
o
n

S
e
t

u
p

a
n
d

ru
n

a
n

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

S
e
rv

ic
e

fo
r

a
d
u
lt
s

w
it
h

a
c
q

u
ir
e
d

b
ra

in
in

ju
ri
e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
Im

p
ro

v
e

c
lie

n
ts

'
s
e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

b
y

e
n
a
b
lin

g
th

e
m

to
p
ro

g
re

s
s

to
w

a
rd

s
w

o
rk

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.

A
t

le
a
s
t
tw

o
c
lie

n
ts

to
a
c
c
e
s
s

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

o
r

e
n
ro

l
o
n

a
tr

a
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
.

£
7
,3

5
5

7
3

7
3

1
0

2
5
.H

o
m

e
S

ta
rt

E
x
e
te

r
D

e
liv

e
r

a
1
0

w
e
e
k

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

c
o
u
rs

e
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

lo
n
e

p
a
re

n
ts

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
T

o
im

p
ro

v
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

.

Im
p
ro

v
e

a
b
ili

ty
to

g
e
t
o
n

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

p
e
o
p
le

/
te

a
m

w
o
rk

–
g

o
in

g
o
n

to
b
e

a
H

o
m

e
-S

ta
rt

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r-

£
3
,1

1
1

1
1

1
1
2

1
2

2
6
.I

v
y

P
ro

je
c
t

E
m

p
lo

y
a

V
o
lu

n
te

e
r-

S
u
p
p
o
rt

W
o
rk

e
r

p
ro

v
id

in
g

e
x
tr

a
s
u
p
p
o
rt

to
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

w
h
o

w
a
n
t

to
a
c
c
e
s
s

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

In
c
re

a
s
e

in
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
t

le
a
s
t

1
0

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
-

a
t

le
a
s
t
1
0

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

£
9
,6

8
1

1
7

5
1
2

1
0

2
2

2
7
.I

v
y

P
ro

je
c
t

T
o
w

a
rd

s
th

e
tu

it
io

n
fe

e
s

fo
r

a
n

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l

to
e
n
ro

l
o
n

a
c
o
u
rs

e
in

d
o
g

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r

s
tu

d
ie

s

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
T

o
g

e
t
a

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n

T
o

b
e

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

£
5
0
0

1
1

1

Page 69



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

2
8
.I

v
y

P
ro

je
c
t

P
ro

v
id

e
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

w
it
h

c
o
m

p
le

x
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

s
u
p
p
o
rt

n
e
e
d
s

to
ta

k
e

u
p

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

in
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

s
e
tt
in

g
s

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
Y

o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
s
k
ill

s
;

im
p
ro

v
e

th
e
ir

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
/s

e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e
ir

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
.

Y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

a
c
h
ie

v
e

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
a
im

e
d

a
t
im

p
ro

v
in

g
e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty

£
9
,9

6
7

5
7

1
3

3
4

3
6

7
0

2
9
.M

a
g

ic
C

a
rp

e
t

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
a

fa
m

ily
g

ro
u
p

th
a
t
o
ff

e
rs

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

c
re

a
ti
v
e

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
to

d
e
v
e
lo

p
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

to
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

b
a
c
k

in
to

w
o
rk

.

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

T
o

im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

o
f

th
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

.

S
o
m

e
p
e
o
p
le

w
ill

fe
e
l

c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

in
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
a
n
d
/o

r
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.

£
9
,9

5
0

5
3
5

3
6

4
4
0

Page 70



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

3
0
.M

a
g

ic
C

a
rp

e
t

R
u
n

a
th

re
e

m
o
n
th

c
re

a
ti
v
e

p
ro

je
c
t
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

a
n
d

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

,
b
u
ild

in
g

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
,

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
s
e
lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

,
s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
re

a
lis

ti
c

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d
/o

r
s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
o
c
ia

l
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

b
e
tt
e
r

e
q

u
ip

p
e
d

to
ta

k
e

o
n

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

£
3
,7

6
1

1
1
4

3
1
0

8
1
8

3
1
.O

liv
e

T
re

e
R

u
n

a
n

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

je
c
t
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

T
u
rk

is
h
/K

u
rd

is
h

w
o
m

e
n

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
In

c
re

a
s
e

C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

S
e
lf

E
s
te

e
m

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

.

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l
a
d

v
ic

e
a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
p
re

p
a
ri
n
g

C
V

a
n
d

c
a
rr

y
in

g
o
u
t
jo

b
s
e
a
rc

h
e
s

o
n

th
e

in
te

rn
e
t.

£
8
,9

4
2

3
7

4
2
8

1
3

4
1

3
2
.O

liv
e

T
re

e
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
a
n

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
im

e
d

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

a
t

w
o
m

e
n

fr
o
m

B
M

E
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
to

im
p
ro

v
e

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l
s
k
ill

s
fo

r
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

o
r

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
n
s
e

o
f

o
w

n
w

o
rt

h

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
a
n
d

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
o
f

s
k
ill

s
n
e
e
d
e
d

to
s
e
t
u
p

o
w

n
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
.

£
6
,5

9
1

1
6

7
2
3

2
3

Page 71



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

3
3
.R

e
fu

g
e
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt

G
ro

u
p

R
u
n

a
n

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h

W
o
m

e
n
’s

P
ro

je
c
t
fo

r
re

fu
g

e
e
s
,

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
th

e
ir

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l
s
k
ill

s
a
n
d

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t.

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

In
c
re

a
s
e

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

in
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

E
n
g

lis
h

L
a
n
g

u
a
g

e

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

w
it
h
in

th
e

lo
c
a
l

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

£
9
,5

9
7

3
1

3
1

3
1

3
4
.R

e
fu

g
e
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
s
o
m

e
o
n
e

to
re

s
e
a
rc

h
e
m

p
lo

y
e
r

d
e
m

a
n
d
s

in
o
rd

e
r

to
c
re

a
te

a
m

a
n
u
a
l
fo

r
th

e
g
ro

u
p
's

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
d
v
is

o
rs

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
A

m
a
n
u
a
l
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a
d
v
ic

e
to

s
e
rv

ic
e

u
s
e
rs

to
e
n
te

r
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t;

e
x
is

ti
n
g

s
ta

ff
a
n
d

v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

tr
a
in

e
d

in
it
s

u
s
e
.

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

o
f

tr
a
in

in
g

,
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
d
v
ic

e
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

n
e
e
d
s

a
n
d

h
o
w

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
e
rv

ic
e

u
s
e
rs

.

£
8
,5

0
0

4
2

5
3
7

4
2

Page 72



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

3
5
.S

o
u
n
d

G
a
lle

ry
R

u
n

a
6

w
e
e
k

m
u
s
ic

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

c
o
u
rs

e
fo

r
y
o
u
n
g

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

a
n
d

u
n
s
k
ill

e
d

p
e
o
p
le

a
g

e
d

1
6
-1

9
a
n
d

liv
in

g
in

E
x
e
te

r.

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
E

n
g

a
g

e
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

to
h
e
lp

ru
n

re
h
e
a
rs

a
l
a
n
d

re
c
o
rd

in
g

s
tu

d
io

;
th

re
e

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

w
ill

tr
a
in

a
s

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

le
a
d
e
rs

w
it
h

a
v
ie

w
to

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

fu
tu

re
p
ro

je
c
ts

a
n
d

o
n
e

o
f

th
e
m

w
ill

b
e

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

P
ro

v
id

e
a

d
ig

it
a
l
p
o
rt

fo
lio

o
f

re
c
o
rd

e
d

w
o
rk

a
s

a
ta

n
g

ib
le

re
c
o
rd

o
f

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t
fo

r
u
s
e

b
y

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e
ir

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

to
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

a
n
d

m
u
s
ic

re
la

te
d

c
o
u
rs

e
s
.

P
ro

je
c
t

w
ill

p
ro

v
id

e
s
te

p
p
in

g
s
to

n
e
s

to
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

£
6
,5

8
1

8
4

1
1
1

1
2

3
6
.S

p
a
c
e
x

O
ff

e
r

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

a
t

ri
s
k

o
f

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
fr

o
m

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

o
r

tr
a
in

in
g

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
to

g
a
in

tr
a
n
s
fe

ra
b
le

s
k
ill

s
in

th
e

A
rt

s
s
e
c
to

r

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
o
f

c
a
re

e
r

o
p
ti
o
n
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

c
re

a
ti
v
e

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
c
a
re

e
rs

a
n
d

lif
e

c
h
a
n
c
e
s
.

£
8
,0

0
0

1
6

4
1
2

1
6

Page 73



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

3
7
.S

t
P

e
tr

o
c
k
's

(E
x
e
te

r)
L
td

R
u
n

a
w

o
rk

a
n
d

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
7
0
%

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
,

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

s
e
lf

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
.

1
5

p
e
o
p
le

w
ill

b
e

in
fu

ll-
ti
m

e
o
r

p
a
rt

-t
im

e
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

1
5

in
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

.

£
1
0
,0

0
0

6
4
7

5
5

5
3

5
8

3
8
.S

t
P

e
tr

o
c
k
's

(E
x
e
te

r)
L
td

P
ro

v
id

e
s
u
p
p
o
rt

fo
r

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p
le

to
h
e
lp

th
e
m

to
ta

k
e

u
p

tr
a
in

in
g
,

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

o
r

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
7
0
%

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
,

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

2
0

p
e
o
p
le

w
ill

b
e

in
fu

ll
o
r

p
a
rt

ti
m

e
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

1
0

in
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

£
1
0
,0

0
0

7
5
2

3
4

5
8

6
2

3
9
.T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e

B
o
x

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m

p
a
n
y

R
u
n

a
1
2

w
e
e
k

d
ra

m
a

p
ro

je
c
t

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
e
x
-

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

’
is

s
u
e
s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

S
e
lf

C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

T
e
a
m

w
o
rk

S
k
ill

s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

ti
m

e
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

£
4
,7

5
0

1
1
2

1
5

9
1
4

4
0
.T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e

B
o
x

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m

p
a
n
y

R
u
n

th
re

e
s
e
ts

o
f
te

n
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
d
ra

m
a

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
a

W
o
m

e
n
’s

G
ro

u
p

fo
r

e
x
-o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

to
a
d
d
re

s
s

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
s
k
ill

s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

a
n
d

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
s
s
e
rt

iv
e
n
e
s
s

£
6
,0

0
0

3
8

2
9

9
3
8

Page 74



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

4
1
.W

e
s
tb

a
n
k

L
e
a
g

u
e

o
f

F
ri
e
n
d
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

d
e
liv

e
r

a
p
a
c
k
a
g

e
o
f
tr

a
in

in
g

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
,
s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

a
n
d

s
e
lf

c
a
re

fo
r

y
o
u
n
g

c
a
re

rs

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

E
a
c
h

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t

to
p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
C

V
,

b
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
e
d

a
n
d

p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
p
la

n
re

la
te

d
to

lif
e

c
h
o
ic

e
s

in
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

o
r

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
in

s
e
lf
-

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

.

£
9
,7

7
7

3
6

3
0

6
3
6

4
2
.W

e
s
tb

a
n
k

L
e
a
g

u
e

o
f

F
ri
e
n
d
s

O
ff

e
r

a
ra

n
g

e
o
f

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
to

y
o
u
n
g

c
a
re

rs
w

h
o

h
a
v
e

b
e
c
o
m

e
d
is

e
n
g

a
g

e
d

fr
o
m

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e
m

b
a
la

n
c
e

th
e
ir

c
a
ri
n
g

ro
le

a
n
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
/e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

E
a
c
h

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t

w
ill

c
o
m

p
ile

a
R

e
c
o
rd

o
f

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t,

in
c
l.
,

a
C

V
a
n
d

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
p
la

n
d
ir
e
c
tl
y

re
la

te
d

to
lif

e
c
h
o
ic

e
s

in
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
/

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

E
a
c
h

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t

w
ill

e
v
a
lu

a
te

th
e
ir

s
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

a
n
d

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

b
e
fo

re
a
n
d

a
ft

e
r

e
n
g

a
g

in
g

w
it
h

th
e

p
ro

je
c
t.

£
4
,1

1
4

1
2

1
0

2
1
2

4
3
.W

o
lf

&
W

a
te

r
R

u
n

a
th

e
a
tr

e
p
ro

je
c
t

fo
r

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p
le

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
e
lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

th
ro

u
g

h
c
re

a
ti
v
e

a
n
d

ta
s
k

o
ri
e
n
ta

te
d

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,

a
n
d

h
e
lp

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
tr

a
n
s
fe

ra
b
le

s
k
ill

s

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
N

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
re

a
c
h
in

g
,

o
r

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
to

ta
l

o
f

3
5
.

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

h
a
v
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

th
e
ir

tr
a
n
s
fe

ra
b
le

s
k
ill

s
(c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
,

p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

,
te

a
m

w
o
rk

,
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

e
tc

)

£
9
,3

0
0

3
2
1

1
1
0

1
5

2
5

Page 75



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

4
4
.W

o
lf

&
W

a
te

r
R

u
n

th
re

e
1
2

w
e
e
k

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

m
u
s
ic

c
o
u
rs

e
s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

S
e
lf

C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

S
e
lf

e
s
te

e
m

3
x

1
2

w
e
e
k

c
o
u
rs

e
s

o
f

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

m
u
s
ic

a
c
ti
v
it
y

£
9
,7

0
0

2
1

5
5

2
1

2
6

4
5
.W

o
lf

&
W

a
te

r
R

u
n

a
w

e
e
k
ly

a
rt

s
g

ro
u
p

fo
r

is
o
la

te
d
/v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

w
o
m

e
n

in
E

x
e
te

r
to

in
te

g
ra

te
th

e
m

s
o
c
ia

lly
,

a
n
d

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
c
re

a
ti
v
it
y

a
n
d

le
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

s
k
ill

s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

T
o

h
a
v
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

1
6

d
a
y
s

(3
2

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
)

o
f

a
rt

s
b
a
s
e
d

a
c
ti
v
it
y

fo
r

is
o
la

te
d

w
o
m

e
n

in
E

x
e
te

r.

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
k
ill

s
£
7
,9

3
6

1
1
6

6
2
3

2
3

4
6
.W

o
lf

&
W

a
te

r
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
,
d
e
v
is

e
a
n
d

d
e
liv

e
r

a
n

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l

F
o
ru

m
T

h
e
a
tr

e
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
th

e
is

s
u
e
s

o
f

y
o
u
th

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

T
o

im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

s
e
lf

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

T
o

d
e
liv

e
r

1
0

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
s
/w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

to
s
c
h
o
o
ls

a
n
d

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

in
E

x
e
te

r
a
n
d

th
e

S
o
u
th

W
e
s
t.

£
6
,6

5
1

2
1
2

1
8

7
1
5

Page 76



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

4
7
.W

re
n

R
u
n

a
m

u
s
ic

a
l
a
c
ti
v
it
y

g
ro

u
p

a
t

S
t

S
id

w
e
ll’

s
C

e
n
tr

e
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

lo
n
e

p
a
re

n
ts

,
p
e
o
p
le

liv
in

g
in

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
,

c
a
re

rs
,

p
e
o
p
le

w
it
h

m
e
n
ta

l
h
e
a
lt
h

n
e
e
d
s

a
n
d

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p
le

.

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

M
e
m

b
e
rs

e
n
ro

lli
n
g

a
n
d

re
g

u
la

rl
y

a
tt

e
n
d
in

g

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
b
ili

ty
to

g
e
t

o
n

a
n
d

w
o
rk

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

p
e
o
p
le

/t
e
a
m

w
o
rk

.

£
6
,5

5
4

3
3
1

8
2
4

1
8

4
2

4
8
.W

re
n

E
x
te

n
d

th
e

m
u
s
ic

p
ro

je
c
t

a
t

S
t

S
id

w
e
lls

to
n
e
w

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

m
e
m

b
e
rs

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

B
e
tt

e
r

g
ro

u
p

w
o
rk

s
k
ill

s
,

s
h
o
w

n
th

ro
u
g

h
th

e
w

a
y

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l

e
m

b
e
rs

in
te

ra
c
t

w
it
h

th
e

tu
to

rs
a
n
d

th
e

o
th

e
r

g
ro

u
p

m
e
m

b
e
rs

B
e
tt

e
r

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
a
n
d

ti
m

e
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t
s
k
ill

s
£
4
,0

0
0

0
1
6

2
5

1
8

2
3

4
1

4
9
.W

re
n

R
u
n

a
‘ju

n
k

b
a
n
d
’

p
ro

je
c
t
fo

r
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

p
a
re

n
ts

a
n
d

c
a
re

rs
to

im
p
ro

v
e

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
k
ill

s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

B
e
tt

e
r

g
ro

u
p

w
o
rk

in
g

s
k
ill

s
,

th
ro

u
g

h
in

te
ra

c
ti
n
g

w
it
h

th
e

re
s
t
o
f

th
e

g
ro

u
p

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

s
e
lf
-

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e

–
ill

u
s
tr

a
te

d
b
y

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

in
p
u
b
lic

,
o
r

ta
k
in

g
a

le
a
d

in
b
a
n
d

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

.

£
5
,5

2
0

1
6

1
6

1
6

Page 77



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a
n

t
P

ro
je

c
t

A
im

S
k
il

ls
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

T
a
rg

e
t

1
T

a
rg

e
t

2
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

-
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
b

e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

A
g

e
A

w
a
rd

>
1
9

2
0
to

5
0

5
0
+

Female

Male

Total
beneficiaries

5
0
.X

-P
lo

re
Y

o
u
th

G
ro

u
p

C
re

a
te

a
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t
g

u
id

e
fo

r
L
G

B
T

p
e
o
p
le

w
h
ic

h
w

ill
b
e

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

b
y

th
e
m

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
P

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

o
f

L
G

B
T

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
rs

o
n
's

g
u
id

e
to

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

in
E

x
e
te

r

B
e
tt

e
r

k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
o
f

L
G

B
T

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t
ri
g

h
ts

b
y

y
o
u
n
g

L
G

B
T

p
e
o
p
le

£
9
,9

7
5

1
8

1
0

1
6

1
2

2
8

T
O

T
A

L
5
0

P
ro

je
c
ts

£
3
5
8
,0

1
2

4
0
3

8
7
6

1
3
8

6
7
4

7
4
3

1
,4

1
7

Page 78



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY ECONOMY COMMITTEE 
4 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
 

BEACON HEATH SURGERY 
 
 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 Council resolved on 15 July 2008 that the petition submitted by Councillor Martin 

to Dr Kevin Snee, the Chief Executive of the Devon PCT, be referred to Scrutiny 
Economy. 

  
1.2 The petition, signed by 112 residents of the Beacon Heath area, states: 

 
 “We, the undersigned, call on you and your officers to take responsibility for the 
long delay in the provision of a new Health Centre for Beacon Heath and to 
deliver on your commitment to provide a much needed new primary care facility 
for the community”. 

  
2.0 BACKGROUND TO THE PETITION 
  
2.1 Officers have been discussing the possibility of releasing a site at Exhibition 

Fields (see annexed plan) for the provision of a new surgery for the Beacon 
Heath area since September 2004.  A provisional agreement to make the site 
available on an Agreement for Lease and Long Lease basis was reached in May 
2006.  A planning application for the construction of a detached building to 
provide a medical centre and pharmacy, parking, access to the highway and 
associated works on the site was submitted in September 2006.  Planning 
permission was approved at the Planning Committee meeting of 6 November 
2006.  Subsequent discussions between the Partners of the Southernhay 
Surgery (the Practice who are to take the site) and their commercial funders 
(Lloyds TSB plc) resulted in the City Council agreeing to make an exception to 
our normal disposal practice by agreeing to grant an up-front 250 year building 
lease.  This was approved by City Council’s Executive on 19 June 2007.  It was 
also necessary to advertise the disposal of the land as public open space and to 
consider any objections to the disposal.  This advertising and consideration 
process was completed in early September 2007.  Since that time, officers have 
sought to conclude agreement of the Heads of Terms with the Practice, but there 
has been no substantive progress towards the grant of the building lease. 

  
2.2 The City Council’s Property Manager recently met with officers of the PCT and 

with representatives of the Practice and it has been confirmed that the issues 
currently causing delay are substantively between the Practice and their Bank.  It 
is understood that the Practice and the Bank are looking to resolve these matters 
and hopefully they will soon have concluded their funding agreement so as to be 
able to give some idea as to when they may be able to draw down on the building 
lease and commence work on site.  If this has happened before Scrutiny 
Economy, a verbal update can be provided at the meeting. 

  
3.0 RESPONSE TO THE PETITION  
  

Agenda Item 10

Page 79



3.1 In view of the fact that the underlying reason for the delay is between the Practice 
and its Bank, it would seem that the petition should perhaps have been directed 
at the Practice.  Members are advised that City Council officers will continue to 
press the Practice to resolve the outstanding issues regarding funding and to 
drawn down on the building lease.  However, neither the PCT nor the City 
Council is in a position to be able to enforce this course of action on the Practice. 

  
4.0 RECOMMENDED that: 
  
 The petition be noted. 
  
  
 
 
 

DAVID PROSSER 
HEAD OF ESTATES SERVICES 
 

JOHN RIGBY 
DIRECTOR 

ECONOMY & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTORATE 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:-  None 
 
Date: 24 July 2008/22/08/08 
 

Page 80



 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Final 

 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - ECONOMY 
 4 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
 

ECONOMY SCRUTINY STEWARDSHIP TO JUNE 2008 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report advises Members of any forecast variations to the budget, based 

on the first three months of the financial year 2008/09. 
 
2. INFORMATION 
 
2.1 This report highlights any differences by management unit to the outturn 

forecast for the first three months of the financial year up to 30 June 2008 
compared with the approved annual budget.  During this period the total of 
the variances indicate that the overall net expenditure for this committee will 
increase by £61,290 which represents a variation of 3.06% from the approved 
budget. 

 
2.2 The main variations by management unit are detailed below:   
  £ 
2008-2009 APPROVED ESTIMATE 
 

 2,002,270 
 

83A1 PROPERTY & ESTATES SERVICES  (8,500) 
 Rental income is higher than expected at several properties 

due to the completion of various lease renewals, geared rent 
increases and income from the release of several restrictive 
covenants relating to ex-council dwellings. 
  
Projected income at St George’s Retail Units is lower than 
budgeted due to the former Card Shop being vacant. 
 

  

83A3 CAR PARKING  17,000 
 Both fee and season ticket income levels are lower than 

anticipated due to deteriorating macro-economic conditions. 
 

  

83A5 FESTIVALS & EVENTS  8,000 
 The Summer Festival has made a small deficit. 

 
  

83B5 PLANNING  50,000 
 It is anticipated that planning fee income will be below 

budgeted levels by the end of the year due to the general 
downturn in the economy. 
 

  

83B9 MARKETS & HALLS  (5,210) 
 Income is higher than budgeted due to the increased use of 

the car parks and boardroom hire at the Matford Centre, 
however the market and boot sale income is slightly lower 
than expected due to the wet weather. 
 
Exeter Corn Exchange income is also higher than budgeted 
due to the increased number of events and food and 

  

Agenda Item 11

Page 83



Final 

 

beverage income. 
 

2008-2009 EXPECTED FINAL OUTTURN   £2,063,560 

    
3. RECOMMENDED that Members note the contents of this report. 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
1.  None 
 
 
22/08/08 

 
 

Page 84



A
N
N
U
A
L

S
U
P
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y

R
E
V
IS
E
D

C
O
D
E

C
U
R
R
E
N
T

F
O
R
E
C
A
S
T
 

B
U
D
G
E
T

B
U
D
G
E
T

B
U
D
G
E
T

O
U
T
T
U
R
N

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

F
O
R
E
C
A
S
T

£
£

£
£

£

(2
,5
2
8
,8
1
0
)

6
2
,3
1
0

(2
,4
6
6
,5
0
0
)

8
3
A
1

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
 &
 E
S
T
A
T
E
S
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

(2
,4
7
5
,0
0
0
)

(8
,5
0
0
)

1
,6
9
0
,5
0
0

0
1
,6
9
0
,5
0
0

8
3
A
2

T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
IO
N
/C
O
N
C
E
S
S
IO
N
A
R
Y
 F
A
R
E
S

1
,6
9
0
,5
0
0

0

(3
,2
5
0
,1
3
0
)

1
8
3
,3
2
0

(3
,0
6
6
,8
1
0
)

8
3
A
3

C
A
R
 P
A
R
K
IN
G

(3
,0
4
9
,8
1
0
)

1
7
,0
0
0

1
,7
7
6
,4
9
0

8
0
,0
0
0

1
,8
5
6
,4
9
0

8
3
A
4

E
C
O
N
O
M
IC
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T

1
,8
5
6
,4
9
0

0

4
0
8
,6
6
0

1
2
,0
0
0

4
2
0
,6
6
0

8
3
A
5

F
E
S
T
IV
A
L
S
 &
 E
V
E
N
T
S

4
2
8
,6
6
0

8
,0
0
0

5
8
8
,6
9
0

4
,0
0
0

5
9
2
,6
9
0

8
3
A
6

T
O
U
R
IS
T
 I
N
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N

5
9
2
,6
9
0

0

2
9
,0
0
0

0
2
9
,0
0
0

8
3
A
7

A
R
C
H
A
E
O
L
O
G
Y
 I
N
 E
X
E
T
E
R

2
9
,0
0
0

0

9
7
8
,6
1
0

0
9
7
8
,6
1
0

8
3
A
8

D
IS
T
R
IC
T
 H
IG
H
W
A
Y
S
 &
 F
O
O
T
P
A
T
H
S

9
7
8
,6
1
0

0

5
9
,8
6
0

0
5
9
,8
6
0

8
3
A
9

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
 C
O
N
T
R
O
L

5
9
,8
6
0

0

1
2
1
,5
0
0

0
1
2
1
,5
0
0

8
3
B
1

L
A
N
D
 D
R
A
IN
A
G
E

1
2
1
,5
0
0

0

0
0

0
8
3
B
2

A
D
M
IN
IS
T
R
A
T
IO
N
 S
E
R
V
IC
E

0
0

0
0

0
8
3
B
3

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 E
C
O
N
O
M
Y
 &
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T

0
0

0
0

0
8
3
B
4

E
N
G
IN
E
E
R
IN
G
 &
 C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO
N
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

0
0

1
,3
2
7
,2
7
0

0
1
,3
2
7
,2
7
0

8
3
B
5

P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

1
,3
7
7
,2
7
0

5
0
,0
0
0

1
1
1
,4
0
0

9
3
,8
4
0

2
0
5
,2
4
0

8
3
B
6

C
O
N
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N

2
0
5
,2
4
0

0

0
0

0
8
3
B
7

A
R
C
H
A
E
O
L
O
G
IC
A
L
 F
IE
L
D
 U
N
IT

0
0

5
5
,0
0
0

0
5
5
,0
0
0

8
3
B
8

M
A
J
O
R
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S

5
5
,0
0
0

0

1
7
5
,7
8
0

2
2
,9
8
0

1
9
8
,7
6
0

8
3
B
9

M
A
R
K
E
T
S
 &
 H
A
L
L
S

1
9
3
,5
5
0

(5
,2
1
0
)

1
,5
4
3
,8
2
0

4
5
8
,4
5
0

2
,0
0
2
,2
7
0

N
E
T
 E
X
P
E
N
D
IT
U
R
E

2
,0
6
3
,5
6
0

6
1
,2
9
0

T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 f
ro
m
 E
a
rm

a
rk
e
d
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

8
3
A
2

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
ra
v
e
lS
m
a
rt

(5
,0
0
0
)

8
3
B
5

L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

(1
3
5
,0
0
0
)

8
3
B
5

P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 G
ra
n
t

(1
7
6
,8
4
0
)

8
3
B
8

M
a
jo
r 
P
ro
je
c
ts

(5
5
,0
0
0
)

O
V
E
R
A
L
L
 F
O
R
E
C
A
S
T
 E
X
P
E
N
D
IT
U
R
E
 F
O
R
 T
H
E
 Y
E
A
R
 A
F
T
E
R
 M
O
V
E
M
E
N
T
S
 T
O
/F
R
O
M
 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

1
,6
9
1
,7
2
0

S
T
E
W
A
R
D
S
H
IP

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
 E
C
O
N
O
M
Y

A
P
R
IL
 2
0
0
8
 T
O
 J
U
N
E
 2
0
0
8

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2008 - 2013
	EHOD EDS Draft Action Plan 2008-2013 040708 -190808 APPENDIX 1

	7 2008  CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN: PROPOSED EXETER UNIVERSITY FEASIBILITY STUDY
	8 ARTS AND MEDIA STRATEGY
	9 GLOBAL GRANTS - EXETER POSITIVE STEPS
	10 BEACON HEATH SURGERY
	11 ECONOMY SCRUTINY STEWARDSHIP TO JUNE  2008
	Stewardship - 1st Quarter

	12 RESTRUCTURING OF THE STAFFING PROVISION OF EXETER'S UNDERGROUND PASSAGES

